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IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICES
FOR PUBLICATION IN THE WEEKLY “GAZETTE”

ATTENTION is drawn to the Notification appearing in the Ist week of every month, regarding the latest dates and times of acceptance
of Notices for publication in the weekly Gazettes, at the end of every weekly Gazette of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes shall close at 12.00 noon of each Friday, two weeks before the date of
publication. All Government Departments, Corporations, Boards, etc. are hereby advised that Notifications fixing closing dates and times
of applications in respect of Post-Vacancies, Examinations, Tender Notices and dates and times of Auction Sales, etc. should be prepared
by giving adequate time both from the date of despatch of notices to Govt. Press and from the date of publication, thereby enabling those
interested in the contents of such notices to actively and positively participate please note that inquiries and complaints made in respect
of corrections pertaining to notification will not be entertained after three months from the date of publication.

All notices to be published in the weekly Gazettes should reach Government Press two weeks before the date of publication i.e.
notices for publication in the weekly Gazette of 03rd January, 2014 should reach Government Press on or before 12.00 noon on 20th
December, 2013.

Electronic Transactions Act, No. 19 of 2006 - Section 9

“Where any Act or Enactment provides that any proclamation, rule, regulation, order, by-law, notification or other matter shall
be published in the Gazette, then such requirement shall be deemed to have been satisfied if such rule, regulation, order, by-law,
notification or other matter is published in an electronic form of the Gazette.”

P. H. L. V. DE SiLva,
Acting Government Printer.

Department of Govt. Printing,

Colombo 08,

January 01, 2013.

This Gazette can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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Appointments &c., by the President

No. 382 0of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/06.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Retirement and transfer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve approved by His Excellency the
President

RETIREMENT

HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the
Sri Lanka Army with effectf from 23rd November, 2011:-

Major General SRINATH MAHENDRA DE ABREW RAJAPAKSE, RWP
RSP USP ndu Ldmc - (0/50825)

TRANSFER TO THE SRI LANKA ARMY REGULAR
(GENERAL) RESERVE

HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the
undermentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular

(General) Reserve with effect from 23rd November, 2011:-

Major General SRINATH MAHENDRA DE ABREW RAJAPAKSE, RWP
RSP USP ndu Ldmc - (0/50825)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
08th November, 2011.

12-493

No. 383 0f 2013
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Promotion and retirement approved by His Excellency the
President

PROMOTION
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the promotion of
the undermentioned Senior Officer to the rank of Brigadier with

effect from 31st August, 2000:-

Colonel RAJAKARUNA WIIEKOON WASALA MUDIYANSELAGE HIRAN
Niwan HaLangopa, RWP RSP USP - (0/50663)

RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the

Sri lanka Army with effect from 01st September, 2000:-

Brigadier RAJAKARUNA WIEKOON WASALA MUDIYANSELAGE HIRAN
Niwan HaLangopa, RWP RSP USP - (0/50663)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
28th February, 2013.

12-641/2

DRF/21/RECT/1660.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cancellation of a notification published in the Gazerte of
the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka relating
to Reversion of Rank and Retirement

CANCELLATION OF NOTIFICATION

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cancellation of
Notification No. 353 of 2000 (DRF/21/RECT/1660) relating to
the reversion of rank and retirement of the undermentioned Senior
Officer published in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka No. 1314 of 25th August, 2000:-

Colonel RAJAKARUNA WIIEKOON WASALA MUDIYANSELAGE HIRAN
Niwan HaLangopa, RWP RSP USP - (0/50663)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
28th February, 2013.

12-641/1
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No. 384 0f 2013

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Retirement and transfer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve approved by His Excellency the
President

RETIREMENT

HIS ExXcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the
Sri Lanka Army with effect from 22nd May, 2011:-

Lieutenant Colonel NiHAL PETER SAMARAKOON, USP SLAC -
(0/61600)

TRANSFER TO THE SRI LANKA ARMY REGULAR
(GENERAL) RESERVE

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the
undermentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve with effect from 22nd May, 2011:-

Lieutenant Colonel NiHAL PETER SAMARAKOON, USP SLAC -
(0/61600)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTAaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

12-481

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RE/32.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Reversion of rank and Retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

REVERSION OF RANK
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the reversion of
rank of the undermentioned Senior Officer to the rank of

Lieutenant Colonel with effect from 15th January, 2012:-

Temporary Colonel JAYASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE UPUL
DHAMMIKA JAYASINGHE - (0/60503)

RETIREMENT
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement

of the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of
the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 16th January, 2012:-

Lieutenant Colonel JAYASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE UPUL DHAMMIKA
JavasinGHa, GR - (0/60503)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
22nd February, 2012.

12-494

No. 385 0of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/360.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of rank, retirement and transfer to the Sri
Lanka Army Regular (General) Reserve approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of
the undermentioned Senior Officer in the rank of Lieutenant
Colonel with effect from 30th April, 2013:-

Temporary Lieutenant Colonel JAYASINGHA KANDAGE JAYANATH
DAYARATHNA JAYASINGHA, USP GW - (0/61383)

RETIREMENT

HIS EXcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the
Sri Lanka Army with effect from 01st May, 2013:-

Lieutenant Colonel JAYASINGHA KANDAGE JAYANATH DAYARATHNA
JayasingHA, USP GW - (0/61383)

TRANSFER TO THE SRI LANKA ARMY REGULAR
(GENERAL) RESERVE

HIS ExXcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of the
undermentioned Senior Officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve with effect from 01st May, 2013:-

Lieutenant Colonel JAYASINGHA KANDAGE JAYANATH DAYARATHNA
JayasingHA, USP GW - (0/61383)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GoTAaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th February, 2013.

12-473
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No. 386 of 2013
DRF/21/RECT/2879.

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of
the undermentioned Officer in the rank of Major with effect
from 04th July, 2009:-
Temporary Major MOHOTTI ARACHCHILAGE NIMALSIRI, RSP
SLSR (0/62120)
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of

the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 05th July, 2009:-

Major MOHOTTI ARACHCHILAGE NiMALSIRI, RSP SLSR
(0/62120)
By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence, Public Security, Law & Order.

Colombo,
20th August, 2009.

12-639

No. 387 of 2013
DRF/21/RECT/3305.

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President

RETIREMENT

HIS ExXceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 15th June, 2011 on medical grounds:-

Major RANAWAKA ARACHCHIGE WIJAYA SRI UDAYA RANAWAKA,
RSP SLSR - (0/61477)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th July, 2011.

12-474

No. 388 0of 2013
MOD/DEF/02/01/ARF/RE.M/287.

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by His

Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of
the undermentioned Officer in the rank of Major with effect

from 10th September, 2012:-
Temporary Major DAyA PALITHAGE NEVIL ARUNASHANTHA, CR
(0/65930)

RETIREMENT

HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement
of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 11th September, 2012 on medical

grounds.

Major DAyA PALITHAGE NEVIL ARUNASHANTHA, CR (0/65930)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defenceand Urban Development.

Colombo,
19th February, 2013.

12-631

No. 389 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/406.

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 01st March, 2013:-

Major MaNIYANGAMAGE DoN Sumupu Kithsirt JayaTissa, SLSC
- (0/61360)
By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
22nd May, 2013.

12-486
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No. 390 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/377.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 02nd April, 2013:-

Major GARDIYA MANAWADUGE NICKSON NIRANJAN DE SiLva,
GW - (0/61570):

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-488

No. 391 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/394.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Senior Officer from the Regular Force of the

Sri Lanka Army with effect from 04th April, 2013:-

Major ANDRA BADUGE Janaka CHaminDa Bapuce, SLAC -
(0/62547):

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
09th May, 2013.

12-491

No. 392 0f 2013

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/347.

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of rank and retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of
the undermentioned Officer in the rank of Major with effect

from 01st May, 2013:-

Temporary Major GANIHACHCHI KANKANAMLAGE WIJERATNE,
SLCMP (0/63858);

RETIREMENT
His EXcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 02nd May, 2013:-

Major GANIHACHCHI KANKANAMLAGE WIERATNE, SLCMP
(0/63858)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTAaBAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
20th February, 2013.

12-418

No. 393 0of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/408.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Confirmation of Rank and Retirement approved by His
Excellency the President

CONFIRMATION OF RANK
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the confirmation of
the undermentioned Officer in the rank of Major with effect

from 30th May, 2013:-

Temporary Major JaNAkA YAsanTHA MouotTl, RWP psc GR
- (0/64210);
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RETIREMENT
His ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 31st May, 2013:-

Major JaNAKA YASANTHA MoHOTTI, RWP psc GR - (0/64210).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
30th May, 2013.

12-489

No. 394 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/335.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the
undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 20th July, 2013:-

Major WARNAKULASURIYA LoyD GorpON FERNANDO, RSP VIR
(0/62907).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
06th May, 2013.

12-633

No. 395 0f 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/364.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of the

undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri Lanka
Army with effect from 03rd September, 2013:-

Major EDIRISINGHE ARACHCHIGE THUSHARA SAMPATH DALUWATTE,
RWP GR (0/63034).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotABAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
07th June, 2013.

12-638

DRF/21/RECT/3308.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency
the President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 11th April, 2011:-

Temporary Major DaNnaNnjaAYA WUENATHA JAyAMAHA, SLE
(O/61281).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotABAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th July, 2011.

12-479

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CW/258.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of Commission Directed by His Excellency
the President

HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular
Force of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 25th June, 2012:-

Temporary Major KONGANIGE ANIL SENARATNE FERNANDO, GR
(0/61035).

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBAaYA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.

12-642
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No. 396 of 2013
DRF/21/RECT/3210.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Retirement and transfer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular
(General) Reserve approved by His Excellency the
President

RETIREMENT

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 30th March, 2011:-

Captain (Quartermaster) MicHAEL PieTersz, USP CR -
(0/64819)
TRANSFER TO THE SRI LANKA ARMY REGULAR
(GENERAL) RESERVE

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the transfer of
the undermentioned Officer to the Sri Lanka Army Regular

(General) Reserve with effect from 30th March, 2011:-

Captain (Quartermaster) MicHAEL PieTersz, USP CR -
(0/64819)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
27th December, 2010.

12-640

No. 397 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/370.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of

the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 01st October, 2013:-

Captain (Quartermaster) BALASOORIYAGE PREMALAL RATHNASIRI,
USP SLAMC - (0/65692)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th June, 2013.

12-487

DRF/21/RECT/3265.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENcY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 11th March, 2011:-

Captain SEMBUNAIDELAGE CHANDANA SAMAN Fonseka, SLAGSC
(0/64055)
By His Excellency’s Command,

GotaBAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
06th May, 2011.

12-420

No. 398 0f 2013
DRF/21/RECT/3307.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 15th August, 2011:-

Captain KarLaNcHI DEWAGE PrADEEP DHARMASENA, CR -
(0/65835)

By His Excellency’s Command,

GoTAaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,
Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th July, 2011.

12-477
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No. 399 of 2013

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RE.M/342.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 16th November, 2012 on medical
grounds.

Captain RAJAKARUNA DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE MAHESH
NILANTHA WIAYATHILAKE, SLLI - (0/64790)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
20th February, 2013.

12-498

No. 400 of 2013

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/345.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 24th February, 2013:-

Captain UpaHA NAKATH GEDARA AJTH UPALI PALAMAKUMBURA,
SLAC - (0/63843)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
20th February, 2013.

12-634

No. 401 of 2013

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/357.

SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 01st March,2013:-
Captain PrRivANTHA GUNASEKARA, SLSR (0/63560)
By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th February, 2013.

12-419

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CW/249.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of commission directed by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Lady Officer from the Regular

Force of the Sri Lank Army with effect from 13th July, 2011:-

Temporary Captain GISHANTHI PRIYANGIKA NIYAGAMA
Kariyawasam GamaGe, SLAGSC (0/63147)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
08th October, 2012.

12-627
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MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CW/305.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of commission directed by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENcY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force

of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 20th August, 2011:-

Temporary Captain UpayAa PrivanTHA NiLame, RSP SF
(0/62056)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
18th January, 2013.

12-628

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CW/32.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of commission directed by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force

of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 05th November, 2011:-

Temporary Captain PiLLawa WaLAwwE CHAMINDA BANDRA
PiLLawa, SLAC - (0/63486)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTAaBAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
20th February, 2013.

12-497

No. 402 of 2013
MOD/DEF/02/01/ARF/RET/368.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 31st December, 2012:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) BANDAGE RaAJAKARUNA, SF -
(0/68091)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotAaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-472

No. 403 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/387.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENcY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 26th May, 2013:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) MENIK PURAGE PIYATHISSA
Karunanayaka, GR - (0/66390)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTAaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
04th May, 2013.

12-416
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No. 404 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/367.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 02nd June, 2013:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE
WEERAKOON BANDA, VIR - (0/66214)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-575

No. 405 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/354.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 22nd June, 2013:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) GAJAMUTHU LANKATHILAKA
CHANDRAPPULIGE AJITH SENAVIRATHNE LANKATHILAKA, SLLI -
(0/67605)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-471

No. 406 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/334.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 31st July, 2013:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) MALLAWA ARACHCHIGE DoN SumITH
Kumara HariscHANDRA, SLAMC - (0/67070)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTABAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
07th May, 2013.

12-417

No. 407 of 2013
MOD/DEF/02/01/ARF/RET/410.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExXcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 06th September, 2013:-

Lieutenant (Quartermaster) MAHADURA AJANTHA, SLAC -
(0/68099)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBAYA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
07th June, 2013.

12-637
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MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CW/352.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of commission directed by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force

of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 03rd February, 2002:-

Licutenant PrasaD NALAKA BANDARA MEDAGEDARA, SLE -
(0/64288)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th February, 2013.

12-626

DRF/21/RECT/326.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENcY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 25th August, 2010:-

Lieutenant ASARAPPULIGE SANJEEWA THILAKSIRI HEWAGAMA, VIR
(0/61457)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
12th April, 2011.

12-421

No. 408 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/376.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 06th October, 2012 on medical

grounds:-

Lieutenant JAYASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE SURANIMALA SANJEEWA
Kumara, SLLI - (0/66644)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-475

No. 409 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/REM/386.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 07th January, 2013 on medical

grounds:-

Lieutenant HORATHAL PEDIGE SURANGA RATHNATHILAKA, GR -
(0/67523)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTAaBAYA Rajaraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-492
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No. 410 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/416.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 13th July, 2013:-

Lieutenant RAJAPAKSHA LiYANAGE EKANAYAKA RajapPaksHA, CR
- (0/67430)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th June, 2013.

12-576

No. 411 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/380.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS EXCELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 05th September, 2013:-

Licutenant WEERASINHA MUDIYANSELAGE JANAPRIYA PUNCHI
Banpara, SLSR - (0/66438)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
07th June, 2013.

12-490

No. 412 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/383.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 19th September, 2013:-

Lieutenant CHAMINDA ASHOKA LAL HATHARASINGHE, RSP MIR
- (0/67445)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
07th June, 2013.

12-636

MOD/DEF/02/01/ARF/CW/227.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of commission directed by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENcY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force
of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 20th September, 2011:-
Lieutenant DHaAMMIKA SANJEEWA KORATHOTAGE, VIR - (0/64097)
By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
14th September, 2012.

12-495
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No. 413 0of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/424.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
RETIREMENT
HIS EXcELLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the Retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri
Lanka Army with effect from 02nd October, 2013:-
Lieutenant RANNAIDEGE KumaRrA RosHaN, SLSC - (0/66815)
By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th June, 2013.

12-632

DRF/21/RECT/2851.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENcY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 09th November, 2008:-

Second Lieutenant RANAWEERA ARACHCHILE ANTH BANDARA
SENAVIRATNE, SLSR - (0/63740)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence, Public Security Law and Order.

Colombo,
25th May, 2009.

12-480

DREF/21/RECT/3303.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 02nd June, 2011:-

Second Lieutenant ILANDART DEWAGE NEIL SANJEEWA RUPASINGHE,
GR - (0/63306)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBayA Rasapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th July, 2011.

12-476

DRF/21/RECT/3302.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 02nd June, 2011:-

Second Lieutenant UHANGODA WEDARALALAGE ARIYATHILAKA
BaNDARA SENANAYAKA, SLAC - (0/64694)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoTAaBAYA Rajapraksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence.

Colombo,
29th July, 2011.

12-478
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MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CW/351.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Withdrawal of commission directed by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExXceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has directed the withdrawal of
commission of the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force

of the Sri Lanka Army with effect from 30th November, 2011:-

Second Lieutenant ANGAMPITI PATHIRANNELAGE SUBODHA
WISHWANATH PATHIRATHNE, SLLI - (O/63517)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
27th February, 2013.

12-496

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CAS/374.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 15th February, 2013:-

Second Lieutenant ABpuL CaAFoorR MoHAMED Faizar, SLSR -
(0/67268)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-630

MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/CAS/378.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE

Cashiering from the Army approved by His Excellency the
President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the cashiering of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 15th February, 2013:-

Second Lieutenant KASTHURI ARACHCHILAGE SHALIKA RANGANA,
GW - (0/67929)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GoraBaya Raiapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
05th April, 2013.

12-643

No. 414 of 2013
MOD/DEF/2/01/ARF/RET/423.
SRI LANKA ARMY—REGULAR FORCE
Retirement approved by His Excellency the President
HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has approved the retirement of
the undermentioned Officer from the Regular Force of the Sri

Lanka Army with effect from 16th April, 2013:-

Second Lieutenant JAYASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE JAYARATHNA,
MIR - (0/67425)

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
28th June, 2013.

12-635
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No. 415 of 2013

NATIONAL CADET CORPS

Commissions approved by His Excellency the President

HIS ExceLLENCY THE PRESIDENT has been pleased the approve the
commissioning of the undermentioned officers in the National
Cadet Corps in the seniority mentioned below.:-

Commissioning the Rank of Temporary Captain with effect from
31st August, 2013 :-

1.

Mr. PANANWALA WIDHANELAGE SUMITH SUMATHI PANANWALA

Commissioning the Rank of Second Lieutenant with effect from
31st August, 2013 :-

>

® N

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

25.
26.

27.
28.

Mr. MoHAMMADU HANIFA MOHOMMED LAFEER;

Miss DANDENIYA HEWAYALAGE SHATHIKA PUSHPAMALI
DANDENIYA;

Mr. SAKRAGE ARUNA SHANTHI RATHNAYAKE;

Mr. MUNASINGHE PATHIRANAGE SAMEERA NIROSHAN
MUNASINGHE;

Mr. MUTHULINGAM W AMANAN;

Mr. KiTHULPE GAMAETHIRALAGE LAKSHITHA SUPUN GUNAPALA;
Mr. HIGULE MUDIYANSELAGE PRIYANTHA PUSHPAKUMARA;
Mr. ILiyAs MoHOMMED IMRAN;

Mr. BoGaHA RALALAGE AJITH RAJAWANSHA BANDARA;

Mr. UDUwANA ARACHCHILAGE SUSANTHA RANJAN THILAKARATHNA;
Mr. JAYASUNDARA MUDIYANSELAGE SUDATH JAYASUNDARA;
Mr. ADIKARI VITHARAMALAYA HARISCHANDRA PEMACHANDRA;
Mr. PETIKIRI KORALAGE DON PRASATH RAVINDRA KUMARA;
Mr. MoHOMMED MASHOOR MOHOMMED ILHAM;

Mr. KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE JANAKA PRIYANTHA BANDARA;
Mr. MiyAaLA GAMAGE ANIL GUNASINGHE;

Mr. AMiLA PRASANNA GUNATHILAKE;

Mr. NIRANJAN PIYANKARA RANASINGHE;

Miss DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE THILINI THAKSHILA
MENIKE DISSANAYAKE;

Mr. MALINDA KRISHAN WADUGE;

Mr. GALLIDAGE MUDITHA SAMPATH HEMACHANDRA;

Mr. MALLIKA ARACHCHIGE PRABATH CHANDRA KUMARA;

Mr. KARIYAWASAM SIPKADUWA GAMAGE SAMATH;

Mr. MaNDALA WALLI PATABEDI KUDARADALA HANGILI GEDARA
SAWANATHILAKE;

Mr. POLGASWATTE KANKANAMALAGE RAVINDRA SIRIWARDANA;
Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE DHANUKA KAUSHALYA
JAYAWARDHANA;

Mr. HINDAKUMBURE LAHIRU DHANANJAYA RAJAPAKSHA;

Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE LAHIRU CHANAKA WEERAKOON;

29.
30.

31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.

37.
38.
39.
40.
41.

42.

43
44
45.

46.

47.
48.
49.
50.
51.

52.
53.
54.
55.
56.

57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.
64.
65.
66.
67.
68.
69.

70.

Mr. MARAGALAGE RASIDU YASHOD MARAGALA;

Mr. RATHNASEKARA PERA GONSAL ACHARIGE DON JUDE SURESH
KRISHANTHA KUMARA;

Mr. GALAGEDARAGE PRIYANTHA;

Miss RaJAPAKSHA GEDARA INDIKA SAMANMALI DHARMADASA;
Mr. CHAMINDA VITTHA KUMARA WEERASINGHE;

Mr. MAHABADUGE RaNGA CHAMINDA FERNANDO;

Mr. CHAMINDA KOLAMBAGE;

Mr. RANAWEERA ARACHCHIGE RUwWAN THusITHA KuMara
RANAWEERA;

Mr. HEELLE KANKANAMGE DINESH PRASHANSANA;

Mr. Uru LivANAGE SUSANTHA ROHANA GUNASINGHE;

Mr. RANASINGHE HETTI ARACHCHIGE SAMAN KUMARA;

Mr. SELLAKKODI MUDIYANSELAGE VIRAJ JAYATHILAKE;

Mr. HITIHAMU MUDIYANSELAGE THUSHARA MUDHURANGA
HitiHAMU;

Mr. LEWLE IDAN GEDARA INDIKA SANJEEWA DHARMAKEERTHI
LEWLE;

Mr. Pobr ApPUHAMY SAMPATH SRI NISHANTHA (GUNASEKARA;
Miss ApiTHYA HELI PABASARA PERERA;

Mr. JAYAWEERA ARACHCHILAGE DoON MIHINDU LANKA
RANASINGHE;

Mr. EWUNUGALLE GEDARA SAJITHANTH WISHVAJITH SENADHI
RAJAKARUNA;

Mrs. HALWATHURAGE RAsSIkKA NILMINI HALWATHURA;

Mr. KUDAGEYALAGE RANJAN GAYANATH DAYANANDA;

Mr. WELIWITAGE NISHANTH KosaLAa RODRIGO;
Mr. ANNAKILI PIRAVEEN KUMAR;

Mr. EKANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE HARSHA KALINGA
EKANAYAKE;

Mr. AMBAGAHAARAWE DOLAKARAGE BUDDHIKA PRIYASHANTHA;
Mr. MooNAGAMA HETTIGE LAKMAL CHATHURANGA;

Mr. PATHIRANAGE NALAKA SAMANTHA KUMARA;

Miss UKWATHTHA KANKANAMGE THILANI SASANTHA;

Mr. GALAKUMBURE GEDARA HEMAJITH DuUMINDA
GALAKUMBURA;

Mr. NIRANJAN SHYAMANTHA UNDUGODA;

Mr. MupiTHA RANGA THOTAGAMUWA;

Mr. SopiGE ROHANA PRASANNA KUMARA;

Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE LALITH KUMARA HERATH;

Mr. MATHURANA GEDARA SUSANTHA DHARMASIRI;

Mr. JAYASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE GAYAN LAKSHITHA PERERA;
Mr. AntH ARUNA KUMARA SENEVIRATHNE;

Mr. PONNAMBALANADAN THUIJEEV;

Mr. THENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE INDRAJITH THENNAKOON;
Mr. KINIWITAGE PAVINDA JAYALAN KINIWITA;

Mr. PEDURU ARACHCHIGE SUSIL SAMPATH;

Mr. EDIRISINGHE DEWAGE SANATH NISHANTHA GUNATHUNGA
Mr. HETTINARAYANA MUDIYANSELAGE HIRAN INDRAJITH
RATHNAYAKE;

Mr. RAJAWARDHANA GEDARA LALITH WEERASINGHE;
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71. Mr. KukULEGE CHANDIMA LASANTHA KUMARA;

72. Mr. HIRANJAN SrR1 CHARITHANGA BOKALAWALA;

73. Mr. HEWANANDA DURAGE NANDASIRI,

74. Mr. LivyaNAGE DoN JoserH PRIDOMIL WELIWITA;

75. Mr. ASURAPPULIGE CHAMINDA (GUNAWARDHANA;

76. Mr.
ABEYSINGHE;

ABEYSINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE WIMALADHARMA

77. Mr. KaNDASAMY KIRUPARAN;

78. Mr. WERAGAMA HEWAGE PRASANTHA WERAGAMA;

79. Miss NISANSALA DILHANI ILANGANTHILAKE;

80. Mrs. CHARINI PRiYANKA DISSANAYAKE WIJESINGHE;

81. Mr.
KODITHUWAKKU;

KopiTHUWAKKU KANKANAMGE THILANKA DERIK

82. Mr. ABDUL CADAR SAFILOOR RASAD;

83. Mr.
SENEVIRATHNE;

84. Mr. MURUTHAWALA DENIYE GEDARA CHAMINDA SHANTHA

KEHELAMBI ARACHCHIGE MADHUSHAN JAYANGA

KUMARA;
85. Mrs. IMALT RANDIKA NAKALANDA;
86. Mr. SUBRAMANIYAM VINODARAN;

87. Mr. SENEVIRATHNE BANDIRALAGE SANJEEWA THUSHARA
SENARATHNE;
88. Mr. DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE KaAprPiLA KuMARrRA

GUNATHILAKA;

89. Mr. DALUGAMA LiYANA ARACHCHIGE JAYATHILAKE;

90. Mr. GURUCHANDIRAN MURALIDARAN;

91. Mr. WELIKANNAGE DON NISANKA SUCHARITHA;

92. Mr. SANMUGAM SELLATYA MICHEL;

93. Mr. NaDparRASA KIRUBANANDAN;

94. Mr. HEMACHANDRA NANAYAKKARA;

95. Mr. PELENAARACHCHIGE HEMANTHA UDARA Dias;

96. Mr. GAMMEDDE HEWA ROHAN NISHANTHA;

97. Mr. EDIRISINGHE ARACHCHIGE SUMITH EDIRISINGHE;

98. Mr. KOKUHENNEDIGE PRASANTHA;

99. Mr. THISAWALANGU MUDIYANSELAGE DAMMIKA DILSHAN;
100. Mr. MUHAMMAD JUNAIDU MUHAMMAD NISTHAR;
101. Mr. PANAMBARA MUDIYANSELAGE CHAMINDA RATHNASIRI,

102.
103.
104.
105.
106.
107.
108.

Mr. ABEYWARNAGE WASANTHA JANAKA;

Mr. RAJENDRAM SASHIKUMAR,;

Mrs. KiRINGODA GAMAGE JANAKI SHAMANTHI,

Mr. MuHAMMADU ISMAIL NAFEER;

Mr. THAVAKULAM THAYAN;

Mr. RASIKA WASANTHA JAYASOORIYA;

Mr. VITHARANA RATHNAYAKAGE LAKSHMAN JAYATHISSA
RATHNAYAKE;

Mr. ABUHANEEFA MARSOOK;

Mrs. MEETHALAWE VIDANELAGE GEETHANJALI JIWAMALI

109.

110.
DISSANAYAKE;

111. Mr. YOGANADAN SATHYABABU;

112. Mr. GUNARATHNAM VIJIRADAN;

113. Mr. GNANAMUTHTHU ANTON CHARLES;

114. Mr. KISHEKUMAR SUWANDIRAN;

115. Mr. WUUETHUNGA ARACHCHIGE MALINDA KUSHAN;

116. Mr. JAYASUNDARA MUDIYANSELAGE NALAKA RAMYASIRI

BANDARA JAYASUNDARA;

117. Mr. DiLaN HEMANTHA EGODAWATHTHA;

118. Mr. CHRISTY ALFRAD ARAVINDAN;

119. Mr. WEERAKEERTHI ANDRA HENNADI;

120. Mr. WICKRAMARATHNA ARACHCHIGE JAYATHILAKE;

121. Mr. ARUMAINATHAN LAKSHMAN;

122. Mr. BALARATNAM PRASATH;

123. Mr. NoorR MOHOMMED MOHOMMED HARIS;

124. Mr. RANGIRI PERILAGE DISSANAYAKE;

By His Excellency’s Command,
GotaBaya Rajapaksa, RWP RSP psc,
Secretary,

Ministry of Defence and Urban Development.

Colombo,
September, 2013.

12-629

Appointments &c., by the Cabinet of Ministers

No. 416 of 2013

IT is hereby notified that the following appointment has been
made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 (2) of
the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka:

Mrs. K. V. P. M. J. Gamage, Class I of the Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as Acting Director General of Combined
Services with effect from 13th June, 2013 until further orders.

12-364/1

No. 417 of 2013

IT is hereby notified that the following appointment has been
made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 (2) of
the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka:

Mr. Chandrarathna Pallegama, Class I of the Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as the Commissioner General of the
Department of Prisons with effect from 01st April, 2013 until
further orders.

11-364/2
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No. 418 of 2013

IT is hereby notified that the following appointment has been
made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 (2) of
the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka:

Mr. N. G. Rathnayake, Class I of the Sri Lanka Planning
Service as Director of the National Fertilizer Secretariat with

effect from 20th June, 2013 until further orders.

12-364/3

No. 419 of 2013

IT is hereby notified that the following appointment has been
made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 (2) of
the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka:

Mr. S. Balasubramaniam, Special Grade of the Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as Director General of the Department of
Technical Education with effect from 01st June, 2013 until further
orders.

12-364/4

No. 420 of 2013

IT is hereby notified that the following appointment has been
made by the Cabinet of Ministers in terms of Article 55 (2) of
the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka:

Mr. M. Y. S. Deshapriya, Special Grade of the Sri Lanka
Administrative Service as District Secretary/Government Agent
of the Administrative District of Mannar with effect from 12th
July, 2013 until further orders.

12-364/5

Other Appointments, & c.

No. 421 of 2012

MINISTRY OF JUSTICE

I, Rauff Hakeem, Minister of Justice by virtue of the powers
vested in me by Section 45 (2) of the Judicature Act, No. 02 of
1978 do hereby appoint —

1. Mr. MoHAMED KHALID RUsHDY AHAMED to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

2. Mr. MoHaMED RAFEEK MoHAMED Rizvi to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

3. Mrs. GANAHIACHCHI PATIRANNEHELAGE KUSUMAWATIE to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

4. Mr. RATHNAYAKA ACHCHILLAGE UKKUBANDA RATHNAYAKA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Kurunegala;

5. Mr. KarRaGopa RANASINGHEGE UPALI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

6. Mr. SaAHUL HAMEED JEMEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Mannar;

7. Mr. ARIYACHAKRA  BANDARANAYAKA  TEWANGA
MUDIYANSELAGE ARIYAWANSA BANDARANAYAKA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

8. Mr. UNGAWEDALAGE JOTHIPALA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

9. Mr. HaBeeBu ManBooB Uwals to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Mannar;

10. Mr. MARASSANA DASANAYAKALAGE DHARMASIRI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

11. Mr. KUDALUGODA ARACHCHILLAGE PREMADASA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

12. Mr. AtHam LEBBE MoHAMED SiNAs to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

13. Mr. RaNTILAKA GEDARA SENAT SIRIMANNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

14. Mr. DoN LinsToN CHANDRAKUMAR PETIKIRIKORALA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

15. Mr. KALUGALLA MUDIYANSELAGE KAPILA BANDARA
KALUGALLA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Polonnaruwa;

16. Mr. ABpuL Razak MoOHAMED JINNAH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

17. Mr. RoBIN ANPALAGAN CROOS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

18. Mr. NaDESHALINGAM KUMANAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

19. Mrs. MoHAMED FArRoOK FATHIMA FADHIYA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

20. Mr. PERUMBULI MUDALIGE CHATHURA CHAMUPATHI ABEYRATNA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

21. Mr. IpAME HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE RATNAPALa to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

22. Mrs. KELLA GAMAGE NANDAWATIE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Embilipitiya;

23. Mr. Loku LivaNAGE DoN RUwAN SANJEEWa to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

24. Mr. ABDUL MAIEED INzAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

25. Mr. KanpiaH BALACHANDRAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Jaffna;

26. Mr. THENNAKOON GAJANAYAKAGE SUNIL SHANTHA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

27. Mr. ATHAMBABA MOHAMMED JAWFER to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

28. Mr. THELGE JoserH PEIRIS to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

29. Mr. SANDANAYAKAGE PIYARATNE JAYASUNDARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

30. Mr. JAMALDEEN MOHAMED ZIYATH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

31. Mr. GaLLAGE EpwARD PEIRIS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

Mr. SiLipPu MUDIYANSELAGE WIJEWARDENA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

Mr. MEERA SAaHIBU MOHAMED JAZEEM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mrs. ADASURIYA MUDIYANSELAGE INDRANI MENIKE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
Mr. WIETHUNGA MUDALIGE RANNITH ARIYADASA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;
Mr. AtHAM LEBBE MOHAMED ALIYAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Rev. HoromBAWE GNANISSARA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. HETTI NARAYANA MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDANA PRIYANTHA
KARUNARATNA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kurunegala;

Mr. AuamMapu LEBBE SAvUL HAMEEDU to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SUBASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE NAMAL KUMARA SUBASINGHE
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Kurunegala;

Mrs. BRAHMACHARIGE SUDHARMA SUDARSHANI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MonoMED NAZEER RAHEEM to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Avissawella;

Mr. GUNATUNGAGE DamMMIKA PusapAa KUMARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunegala;

Mrs. MaLINT LIYANAARACHCHI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. LAKSHMAN PATHIRANAGE LAKSHMAN RAJAPAKSHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED ABBAS MOHAMED JAMEEL to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. HaTHBE HEWAGE GUNADASA GUNASEKARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. SINNATHAMBY SASITHARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. MunaMMADU LEBBE ABDUL AZEEZ to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. RAJAPAKSHE ARACHCHILAGE DIMUTHU NILANKA
RaAJAPAKSHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Ampara;

Mr. PANAMBARAGE SUKITHA SHAMEN BEPTISTA MONTEEN
FERNANDO to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Negombo;

Mr. KaMALDEEN MoHIDEEN ABDUL CADER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. DEVATHA PEDIDURAYALAGE ANURA NALINDA WIJESUNDARA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. VADIVEL VARATHARAIAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. SIVALINGAM SIVADASAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai,

Mr. THURAIAPPAN VIMALARAJ to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mrs. NAMBUKARA WELLALAGE SUNEETHA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. MouaMED UBAIDULLA NAZHAN AHAMED to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

Mr. GIRAKADUWA MUDIYANSELAGE SAMAN KUMARA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. SAROJINEE CHITRA TENNAKOON to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MouaMED USUFF SHIHABDEEN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. RAJAPAKSE WASALA TENNAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE RANJITH
BANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
Mr. IDANPITIYA WICKRAMATILAKA MUDALIGE DAYA METSIRI
WICKRAMATILAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole

Island;

Mr. WANASUNDARA ARACHCHILLAGE DINGIRIBANDA
WANASUNDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. ABpuL CADER DILSHAD to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mrs. FATHIMA SADOONA MOHAMED SHUAIB to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PERIYAN JEYAKANTHAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. MoHAMMADU ILyAs MoHaMMADU BAZEER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PALASUNDARAM KANTHASAMY to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. PATKUNARASA THAYALARAJ to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai

Mr. MoHAMED KALIF MoHAMED HASSAR to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. KIRUSHNAPILLAI SRITHARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. RAaJENDRAN KANENDIRAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. MusTAFA MoHaMaD Razick to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. Packiya SELvaM PuvIRAJAH to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. LoGANATHAN PREMAKANTH to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mrs. ABOOBACKER MUFEERA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. KuMARASHAMI PIRABAKARAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. VEeLupiLLAl KRISHNAVEL to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. KARUVALTHAMBI PRATHEEPATHASH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. MoHAMED MOHIDEEN ALIYAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. MARIYATHASAN SOOSAITHASAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. KANTHAPPAN PARARAJASINGAM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. MonaMED TuaN NousarD WAFEE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ARumuGaM THIRUCHELVAM to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. JoserH BALTHAZAR to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;
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87.

88.

&9.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.
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96.

97.

98.

99.
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101.

102.

103.

104.

105.

106.

107.

108.

109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

114.

Mr. AYATHU MoHAMED ABDUL MAJEED to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Rev. GaLratHA SuMaNA Thero to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mrs. AMARA KuMARrlr WHESINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. RukmaN Fouspeen to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. GALPOTHTHE GEDARA KULARATNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mrs. ILANDARTI DEwA RUPAWATHIE MALLIKA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;

Mr. SHARIFFUDEEN MOHAMED SHAFEEK to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. THARMALINGAM KIRITHARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Jaffna;

Mr. MarimutTU KUMARASWAMI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. KANAPATHIPPILLAI YOGATHASAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Vavuniya;

Mr. SENANAYAKE AMARASINGHA MOHOTTI APPUHAMILAGE
WICKRAMARATNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Gampaha;

Mrs. MaHrooF FAZEENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Puttlam;

Mr. CHAMINDA DESHAPRIYA HETTIARACHCHI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PREMADASA KATUDENIYA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. HEwa GALLAGE WARUNA GUNARATNE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. HanparPaNGoDAGE DApLI RuBaN PEIRIS to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. GAMARALALAGE GNANARATNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SUBASINGHE ARACHCHILAGE DHAMMIKE SUBASINGHE
BanpaRra to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
Mr. RANAWEERAGE DAYARATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. KALANTHAR SUBAIR to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. KarurpiaH SUBRAMANIAM to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. RajaraM Nampu THISHANTHKUMAR to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PRATHAPA SOORIYAARACHCHIGE RANJITH DAYANANDA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED SHARIFF MOHAMED Faizar to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MaLMADANA KAPUGE DiLRUK MANoJ KUMAR SiLvA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MUTHUTHANTRIGE CHARITHA MIHIRAN PRIYANKARA
FeErnANDO to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Panadura;

Rev. POTHTHEKANDE GNaANAWASA Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Mr. Haju MoHAMED MoHAMED NALEER to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

115.
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138.

139.

140.

141.

142.

143.

Mr. Don Siyaporis NAKULUGAMUWA GAMAGE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. PrticaLA KANKANAMGE JINADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MonaMED AHAMED JIFFRY to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mr. MABOTUWANA VITHANAGE SIRISENA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

Mr. GANGODAWILA APPUHAMILAGE JAYATILAKE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Mr. ABbuL MUNAFF ENRAFEEK to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. BALAWANAGE GAYAN SANDARUWAN WIJAYASINGHE to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. UrRaLA GAMAGE CHANDRARATNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mr. SEENI MoHAMED SHAHUL HAMEED to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. Sri RANGADASS VIIAYANANTH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PrivALAL ATHULA JAYASUNDARA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ELGIRIYA L1YANAGE THILAKASIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. MoHAMMED AHAMED NOwMAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. VELUPILLAI SITHAMBARANATHAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. DELGAHAPITIYA ARACHCHILAGE ASOKA RATHNAYAKE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SUBRAMANIYAM GARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mr. ABbuL WAHAB MOHAMADU AHUTHER to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. TuuraiaPPAH KAMALANATHAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. JEYaALATHA GARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. GALLAGE NANDASENA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. PACKEER MoHAMED SHAKIR HuUssAIN to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Priest StvaANU VIIAYAKUMAR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Monaragala;

Mr. LEeNIA KUMARAGE SIRIWARDHANA PERERA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. RaJANI PRATHEEPAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Jaffna;

Mr. ABpuL Azeez MuzaB RAZEEN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. KobippiLi ARACHCHIGE DoN ANIL DHAMMIKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SuaANMUGAM CHRISTOPHER to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. LivyANA GAMARALALAGE JAYANTHA PIYARATHNA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Mr. ABpUL LATHIFF SUBUHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;
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167.

168.

169.

170.

Mr. DISSANAYAKE MUDIYANSELAGE WIPULA ASHOKA BANDARA
DissANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Colombo;

Mr. INPARASA MUHILVALAVAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Baticaloa;

Mr. MALABAGE LALITH SENAKA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. PELA VIDANALA GEDARA MOHAMED MULAFFER MOHAMED
Muzni to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Kandy;

Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE MILINDA DANUSHKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

Mr. MARUDARAT RAJENDRAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Badulla;

Rev. DopaMGASLANDE RATHANATISSA Thero to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ABpuL CAREEM MUHAMMADU SHAFFIE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. ABESEYKARA KULASINGHA ARACHCHIGE MANJULA KUMARI
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;
Mr. MoHAMED IBRALEBBE NIRros to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. LANCELOT SHELTON SALVADOR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. ALUDEVAGE SUMITH MANGALA RAJAPAKSHE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. AHAMED MOHIDEEN JABEER to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. HimavyaTH HAZEER to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. SATHAKKU LEBBE ZAINULABDEEN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. SHAMSUNISSA MOHIDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mrs. Ummu Jasmant THassim to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. MUSTHAFA SAMSUDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mrs. KULATUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE NILANI KULATUNGA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED ABOOSALLY MOHAMED RIFAZ to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunagala;

Mr. WELIKANDE GEDARA ABEYRATNE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mrs. KULATUNGA MUDIYANSELAGE KAMANI KULATUNGA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
Mr. ABpuL Razik MoHaAMMED GHOUSE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PERAMUNE RALALAGE SENATILAKE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. WEERAKOON MUDIYANSELAGE DAYARATNE BANDARA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. DEVASINGHE PATABENDI GEDARA WASANTHA GAMINI
DEwASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

Mr. SELEMA LEBBE MIHRATJ to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kurunagala;
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Mr. RANAWAKA ARACHCHIGE Y ASARATNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. ILE GEr SHEELA KARIYAwasaM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mr. MuHAMMADU IsMaIL MUHAMMADU AMEEN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunagala;

Rev. KararutuGaLA SuMaNawansa Thero to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. PANDIPPERUMA ARACHCHIGE CHAMILA KUMARI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. AspuL WaHID MuHaMMADU Prous to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunagala;

Mrs. RANASINGHE PETIKIRI KORALALAGE WASANA JEEWANI
RANASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. IMIHAMI MUDIYANSELAGE NILANTHA HARSHA BANDARA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Trincomalee;

Mrs. MoHAMED IsMAIL MUNAWWARA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SOMASKANTHA SARMA NADESA SARMA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. CuamLI BANDULA RAMANAYAKA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. Han Apam LEBBE ALIM MOHAMED JAUFER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mrs. KANAGARADNAM ANANTHAGOWRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Mannar;

Mr. RAMANAYAKA PATHIRANALAGE RUWAN SURANIITH
RAMANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. AtHaM BAawa MoHAMED ASHAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Baticaloa;

Mr. Upa HEwA HETE GEDARA GUNASENA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Nuwara Eliya;

Mr. KApANAMULLA KANKANAMGE JAYAPALA KULATILAKE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;
Mr. AHAMED KABEER ABOOTHALIF to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Puttlam,;

Mr. SiSIRA JAYATILAKE DISSANAYAKA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ALUTHIAGE DON SuUMANADASA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

Mrs. AsaN KutHTHOOS FATHIMA SANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Vavuniya;

Mr. CHANDRAPALA HETTIARACHCHI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. SHAHUL HAMEETHU AHAMETHU ASHRAFF to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. WEERASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE KURULLANMADUWE
SUJEEWA PrivaNTHA WEERASINGHE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. NaDpARAJAH KANANATHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. AsseN MoHIDEEN MoHOMED RAMEES to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

Mr. KARIYAWASAM JALATH ATHOR JAYASEKARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;
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Mr. ILLEPERUMAGE DON ANTHONy to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Panadura;

Mr. SEyNUL ABDEEN MOHAMED RIFAYDEEN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PivyAsENA KARUNATILAKE HERATH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mr. IriwaRA HEwAGE DamITH to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mrs. THIRANAGAMA PANDITHAGE CHANDRIKA ROHINI to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ABbuL GAFFOOR MUHAMED KIsHOR to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. DiSSANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE ANURA WIJESINGHE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;
Mr. AMBALAVANAR THURAISINGAM to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. Picucuer THamMBI MoHAMED RAZAK to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE WIPULA PRIYANTHA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;
Mr. LADDUSINGHA BADUGE PUNYAWARDENA DE SiLva
KULARATNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kurunagala;

Mr. SHEkU IBRALEBBE MoHAMED IQBAL to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. TaLPE LivANAGE CHANDRASIRI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ALUTHDUWA HEWAGE ARUNA SHANTHA GUNAWARDENA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. Kurasiki WEERABADDANA DISSANAYAKA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. YaseeN Uwails to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. GamiNT KEERTHI KUMARA SENARATH MOHOTTI ARACHCHI
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. KADAWATHA ARACHCHIGE SIRIL CHANDRAPALA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. JATHUNGA DAHANAYAKA MANOJ ROSHAN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MouaMED IsmMAIL NASAR to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mrs. PALLIYAGURUGE THARANGA AWANTHI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. ABEYWARDENA LIYANAARACHCHIGE SUNIL to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. ALUTHDUWA HEWAGE P1yASENA GUNAAWARDANE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;
Mr. MoHAMED HaNiFFaA MuzammiL KABEER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. GANGODAWILAGE RANJITH PERERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. WasSANTHA KUMARA ABEYGUNAWARDENA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. DoN ELBERT SIRIMANNA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. MoHEMED JUNAID MOHEMED RisaN to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

Mr. NimaL GUNATHILAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;
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Mr. KARIYAWASAM MARTHIGNGNA GAMAGE BANDULA
Javasooriva to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Rev. GALEDANDE SriI VIMALARATNE Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MunaMMED HaNIFA NASURDEEN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Mannar;

Rev. Father LaksHMAN RoHITHA ABEYWICKRAMA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE TIKIRI KUMARIHAMI
RATHNAYAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. MOHAMMADU ASHRAFF MARICKAR MUHAMMED ASMIR toO
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. AMARASINGHE MUDALIGE JAYARATNE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. BowALA PATIRANNEHELAGE CHAMINDA SENADEERA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;
Mr. MALAYA PATIRANAGE PrvAsiRi WEERARATNE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. DeENt KADINAPPULI P1vYASIRT MANAWASINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha,;
Mr. MouaMED RAFEEK Ramzi ALl to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MIRIHANA ARACHCHILAGE Tissa RATHNAYAKA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;
Mr. THANIPPULT DHANUSHKA MAHESH WAIDYASEKARA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE SUDATH BANDARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. MISKEEN ABDULLA MoOHAMED MUBARAK to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. URAGODA APPUHAMILAGE PALITHA PRIYASHANTHA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. GURUDENIYE WEDAGEDARA DAGLAS SRILAL GURUDENIYA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
Mr. JALALDEEN SAMEEM MOHAMED MURTHALA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Nuwara Eliya;

Mr. WILFRED MicHAEL CoLLIN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. STANISLAUS IRUTHAYATHAS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. SEENITHAMBY GEORGE DEVANAND to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ABpuL HAMEED JAvis to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mrs. UsHa MoHANADAS to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. SopiGE HEMANTHA Upaya Kumara to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

Mrs. RATNAYAKA MUDIYANSELE ASoka to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. MonaMeD HANEEFA RAISUL AsMmy to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. KANATHTHAYALAGE SUNIL MARASINGHe to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. SUDUHAKURUGE SHANTHA KUMARA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;
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Mr. MonaMmeD Baseer ABpuL Fouk to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Rev. TueriPEHE SiRi DHAMMA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. WEDIKKARA ARACHCHIGE BUDDHIKA PRABATH
KARUNATILAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. MoHAMED ABOOBACKAR KALEEL UL RAHMAN to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. VELUPPILLAI VILVARASA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. THEVAPEODI RAVENTHIRAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. MouaMED HAMEER MUSTHAK MOHAMED to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. CHANDRASIRI DISSANAYAKA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE VINSON JAYASURIYA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. GurusaMy THAMILKUMARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Mr. RAJAPAKSE VITHANAGE PRADEEP RAJAPAKSE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. YASEENBAWA LI1YAQATH ALI to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. ALUTH WALAWWE SENAVIRATNE BANDA BANDARANAYAKA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Monaragala;

Mr. JAvasekaRA HETTI ARACHCHIGE CLERENCE THISERA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Monaragala;

Mr. AuaMED LEBBE MoHAMED SHAFEEK to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. DEVRUNNEHELAGE SAMAN KuMARA WIIEWEERA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunagala;
Mr. MUTHULINGAM ANANDARAJAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. UMARLEBBE SAMSUDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Batticaloa;

Mr. SiLLAPANA PALIHANA WICKRAMASINGHE MUDIYANSELAGE
RaNBANDA WICKRAMASINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Rev. LAKSHAHENE GNANANANDA Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PoDDANA PRIYANKARAGE SUDATH KULARATHNA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SEENIMOHAMED JUNAIDEEN TO BE A JUSTICE OF THE PEACE
FOR THE JupICIAL ZONE OF KALMUnNai;

Mr. GALPELE GEDARA ASOKA INDRANTH to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SEHU SATHAR MoHAMED OLITH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. HEwaA MARAMBAGE SUGATHAPALA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Polonnaruwa;

Mrs. PALLAWELAGE INDIMA INOkKA WIIESEKARA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED RASHARD MOHAMED SHUKRY to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Gampaha;
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Mr. BuLAaTHGAHA DEWAGE HERBERT FERNANDO to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Rev. GIRAULLE GNANASIRI Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED HAROON MOHAMED SHAFEER to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Rev. ULnitiyE WintHASARA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. KuMARANDI KAUSHALYA GANGANI to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. FARoOk MoHAMED ASMEER to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mrs. JamMuNI GEDARA LALiTHA PADMINI to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. JAYASINGHE MOHOTTIGE KUMARASINGHA PERERA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. SumitH PrivANTHA TENNAKOON to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. SEYATHALAFI AMEERJAHAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. IsSMALAGE MARTIN to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Mrs. SuLAIMAN INOON FALINA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

Mr. LEBUNA PEDURU VIMALAWEERA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;

Mr. ABDUL Razzak AL-AMAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. SUBRAMANIAM SUKUMARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. DiLLANTHURAT THAYAKARAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Jaffna;

Mr. HussaIN SIRAHAPDEEN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. KaANDE KUMBURE GEDARA DHAMMIKA BANDARA
KANDEKUMBURA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Polonnaruwa;

Mrs. PONNAMPERUMA ARACHCHIGE CHAMPIKA NIRANJALEE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;
Mr. AnaMeED CAREEM FAIrR0OS to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. THANGARAJAH SATHEESAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. CHANDRAKUMAR SANSEEVARAJAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Jaffna;

Mr. ABDUL MANAF MAHROOF to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mrs. DEVIKA PUSHPAMALA ABRAHAM TO BE A JUSTICE OF THE
PEACE FOR THE WHOLE ISLAND;

Mr. KUMARAPATABENDIGE OSWALD MELVIN SiLvAa to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. JAYASINGHA ARACHCHIGE ANURA JAYASINGHA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Balapitiya;
Mr. ABpuL CaSeeN Iyoob to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. GALAGANGODA ARACHCHIGE JAGATH PUSHPALAL PERERA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
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Mr. SAMARADIVAKARA RAJAPAKSHE MOHOTTALALAGE
KuLAsINGHE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Gampaha;

Mr. SanuL HAMEED THASREEK to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. KaLEHE LoKUGE NANDASENA SAHABANDU to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. WADUWAWARAGE SURANGA SAMEERA DILRUKSHAN PERERA
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Colombo;

Mr. IBra LEBBE MoHAMED NAZEEr to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. HERATH GEDARA SHANAKA PRABHODA KARUNARATHNE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. Lorensu HEwA WELLE KANKANAMGE DAYANANDA to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. UpAMULLAGE SuNITH WIESENA UDAMULLA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SINGAN KUTTI ARACHCHILAGE SANJAYA LAKMINDA
SIRIWARDANE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. MouoMED IsMATH NasirF ImMTHIYAS CAREEM to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. JAYAMUTUPATIRANAGE SARATH WIJEWEERA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. MINNERIPITIYAGE PRIYADARSHANI PUSHPAKUMARI
KARUNARATNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE NALAKA LASANTHA
BaNDARA EKANAYAKA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. MonoMED THAMBY MOHAMED ISMAIL to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SELVARATNAM SELVARANIAN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. ELvIN MicHAEL NiwToN FERNANDO to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ALAGAIA SUGUMARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED NASLEEM to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mr. VUUAYARETHINAM KAMALATHASAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. HAPUKOTUWE GEDARA VIMALAWATI SENEVIRATNE to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. JAYASURIYA ARACHCHILAGE MANEL JAYASURIYA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MouaMED IsMAIL Fais to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mr. S.B. MEDAGEDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. W. K. ANaNDA to be a Justice of the Peace for the
Whole Island;

Mr. ABEYKOON MUDIYANSELAGE SARATH ABEKOON to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. DARANAGAMA ARACHCHIGE SUBADRA GUNATHILAKE to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. HERATH MUDIYANSELAGE GODN W1JAYA PARUSSELLA to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;
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Rev. TALAHITIMULLE VIMALAWANSHa Thero to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. KALUARACHCHIGE SUMITHRA NANDANI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHAMED SULTAN MoHAMED NAJEED to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. OMATHTHAGE MERVIN NANDASIRI PERERA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. DEBARADURA KuUMARASIRI EDWARD to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. KAMAL MOHIDEEN AHAMADU JALALDEEN to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PUSHPAKUMARA JAYAWARDANA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. JAYAWARDANA KiTHULA GODAGE DAMSIRI JAYALATH to
be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MoHnaMED Nizam AHAMED Rizvi to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Rev. KANANKE MaHANAMA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. SHYAMALI PRiYANGIKA WICKRAMASINGHE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. MonaMED HANIFFA JIFFRY to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. Mirisse KaDIRAGE NANDASOMA to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mrs. PiLapuwA BoGAHAWATTAGE NANDASEELI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Matara;

Mr. MoHAMED NAINA MoHAMED Fawzi to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. SirisomA HEMANAYAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Rev. Father NaGArRAsA PRABAKAR to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. MoHAMED ABOOBUCKER MOHAMED NIYAS to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. POORNANANTHA ESWARA SARMA IYNKARA SARMA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Mannar;

Mr. SEBASTHIYANPILLAI SEBAMALEMUTTU to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Mannar;

Mr. ABpUL SALAM JAWAHIR to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Trincomalee;

Mr. L1YANAGE JAYATILAKE to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Mr. JAYASINGHE SIRIWARDANA DON ARIYADASA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island

Mrs. EKANAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE PRAGNA SEETHA
KumarRiHAMY DODANWELA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mrs. MASWELAGEDARA PoD1 MENIKE DAYARATNA TO BE A
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE FOR THE WHOLE ISLAND;

Mrs. MUTHUPORATOTAGE ASANKA SUMUDINI PERERA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
Mr. MoHaMED Azeez MoHAMED ABDULLA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. RATHNAYAKA MUDIYANSELAGE UPALI RATHNAYAKA tO
be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of
Anuradhapura;
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Mrs. MURIEL NANDA WIIESIRIWARDANA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. UtHuMA LEBBE MoOHAMED NASFEER to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mrs. Sirt RATHNAMALEE HETTIARACHCHI WIESINGHE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. YakooB LEBBE MoHOMED IRFAN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kurunagala;

Mrs. ALUTHGAMA GURUGE RANJANI to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mrs. WHERATHNA HARAMANISGE NEELAPANI CHINTHA
SENEVIRATHNA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Colombo;

Mr. ALAGIYAWANNA RATHNASURIYA MUDIYANSELAGE
ALEXANDER TENISON DE PREMNATH RATHNASURIYA to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. MEeera LEBBE ABDUL MAIEED to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. MUHANDIRAMALAGE UPALI MUHANDIRAM to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Awissawella;

Mr. HiSSELLAGE SUBANERIS RANASINGHE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. SALAHUDEEN NIHARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mrs. KURAMBADENIYALAGE SUVINEETHA WEERASINGHE to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

Mr. LiyANA ARACHCHILLAGE SELISIN LIYANAARACHCHI to be
a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kegalle;

Mr. MouaMED IBRAHIM AMEEN to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. PoLGAMPALA RALALAGE DESHAPRIYA NAWARATNE
BANDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone
of Kegalle;

Mr. PAHALA PEELLAGE PRIYANTHA JALIYASIRI to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. JALATHGE SAMAN GANGANATH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Galle;

Mr. SEGU MOHIDEEN SEINULABDEEN to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. HIRiyYAMULLA VITHANAGE SOMARATNA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalutara;

Mr. VETTIVEL SRITHARAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Jaffna;

Mr. YAkooB LAREEFKHAN to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Whole Island;

Rev. KoraroLa Subamma Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Rathnapura;

Rev. BALANGODA SUMEDALANKARA Thero to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Rathnapura;

Mr. MATHAR MOHIDEEN MOHAMED ZUBAIR to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. SINGAKKUTTI ARACHCHILAGE DHARMARATHNE to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;
Mrs. YAKUPITIYAGE KALYANAWATIE to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Negombo;

Mr. MIHIDUKULASOORIYA ANTON NIHAL FERNANDO to be a
Justice of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. NiZAMDEEN MOHAMED SAIFULLAH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

393.

394.

395.

396.

397.

398.

399.

400.

401.

402.

403.

404.

405.

406.

407.

408.

409.

410.

411.

412.

413.

Mr. DELGOLLAGE SENEVIRATHNE to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Whole Island;

Mr. JAYASURIYA MUDIYANSEGE CHANDANA KUMARA
ARIYARATNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. ABuL HAssAN MOHAMED SHANIEER to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kalmunai;

Mr. GUNARATNE MUDIYANSELAGE VIJITHA ANILA KANTHA
GUNARATNE to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial
Zone of Kandy;

Mr. MoHAMED SHAFI MoHOMED HANAFFI to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. KONARA MUDIYANSELAGE MUTHUKUDE WALAWWE
JAYAWARDENA BANDARA NARAMPANAWE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. RAJAPAKSHE WASALA MUDIYANSELAGE CHANDRARATNA
BanpArRA KUMBUREGEDARA to be a Justice of the Peace for
the Judicial Zone of Kandy;

Mr. AsBbuL CAREEM RAYEES MoHAMED to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Anuradhapura;

Mr. PINGAMAGE DoN EBERT CHANDASIRI to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Chilaw;

Mr. Loku MUHANDIRAMLAGE WIJERATHNE to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. NELUWE MUDIYANSELAGE SENEVIRATNE to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mrs. WANNI AcHCHIGE VIITHA FONSEKA to be a Justice of
the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Colombo;

Mr. WiEKOON WASALA MUDIYANSELE HEEN BANDA WIJEKOON
to be a Justice of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kandy;
Mr. SELVARATHNAM PERINPARASA to be a Justice of the Peace
for the Judicial Zone of Vavuniya;

Mr. ABpuL CADER ABDUL HANEETH to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Judicial Zone of Ampara;

Mrs. PRAGHGHAWATHIE MENIKE THENNAKOON to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. ADAPPAYALA GEDARA ABDUL RAHUMAN MUHAMMADU
Nivaz to be a Justice of the Peace for the the Whole
Island;

Rev. SEEGIRIMULLE NAGITHA Thero to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. Ataam LEBBE MoHAMED NAwAS to be a Justice of the
Peace for the Whole Island;

Mr. PERAKOTUWE WEDARALALAGE NIMAL DHARMAPRIYA
GUNAWARDANA to be a Justice of the Peace for the Whole
Island;

Mr. KASTHURI ARACHCHILLAGE THILAKARATHNA to be a Justice
of the Peace for the Judicial Zone of Kuliyapitiya;

As the Justice of Peace.

RAUFF HAKEEM,
Minister of Justice.

Ministry of Justice,
Colombo 12,
26th November, 2013.

12-509
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Government Notifications

My No. : RG/NB/11/2/16/2013/89 /1.
NOTICE UNDER THE LAND REGISTERS RECONSTRUCTED FOLIO ORDINANCE (CAP.120)

I HEREBY give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land Register Folios,
particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the lands described in Column 2, there of which have been
found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of
which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

2. The provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the Office of the
Registrar of Lands, Colombo, 06.12.2013 to 20.12.2013 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working days.

3. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any particulars
alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing addressed to the undersigned
which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the Office of the Registrar General not later than 27.12.2013. The matter
in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or
claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence relies upon the support of it.

SCHEDULE

Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers

Folio No. 238 of volume 253 of All that divided and defined allotment of Land Marked 1. Deed of Transfer No. 897

Division A of the Land Registry, lot B depicted in plan No. 3482 dated 07.01.1936 written and attested by
Colombo in Colombo District. made by E. M. Anthoniz, licensed Surveyor and G. N. S. De Saram, Notary
bearing Assessment No. 27 of the land situated at public on 31.05.1941.

Deal Place, Kollupitiya within the Municipality and
District of Colombo, Western Province bounded on 2. Deed of Gift No. 373 written and
the, attested by R. C. J. Corera, Notary
Public on 25.05.1957.
North by : Property of James Perera;
East by  : Remaining Portion of Lot 3 in Plan
No. 1259;

South by : Deal Place;

West by  : Lot A, Plan No. 3482.

Extent : 00A., OOR., 12P.

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.

12-394
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My No. : RG/NB/11/2/32/2013/89/es1.
NOTICE UNDER THE LAND REGISTERS RECONSTRUCTED FOLIO ORDINANCE (CAP.120)

I HEREBY give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land Register Folios,
particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the lands described in Column 2, there of which have been
found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of
which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

2. The provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the Office of the
Registrar of Lands, Colombo, 06.12.2013 to 20.12.2013 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working days.

3. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any particulars
alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing addressed to the undersigned
which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the Office of the Registrar General not later than 27.12.2013. The matter
in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or
claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence relies upon the support of it.

SCHEDULE
Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers
Folio No. 165, 166 of volume 68 All that allotment of Land marked Lot 22Y 1. Deed of Conveyance No. 976
Division Wella of the Land depicted in plan No. 351 dated 17 and 18.08.1956 written and attested by
Registry, Colombo in Colombo made by J. L. Martenstyn, licensed Surveyor of the N. A. B. Stave, Notary Public
District. land called ‘Kelankaduwawatta’ alias Kongahawatta’ on 28.02.1964

situated at Galle Road in Wellawatta within the
Municipal Council limits of Colombo in Palle Pattu 2. Deed of Transfer No. 13 written

of Salpiti Korale in the District of Colombo, and attested by K. J. M. Fernando,

Western Province bounded on the, Notary Public on 24.09.1982.
North by : Lot 22X (15 feet Road); 3. Deed of Transfer No. 15 written
East by  : Lot 22W; and attested by K. J. M. Fernando,

Notary Public on 13.10.1982.
South by : Lot X;
West by  : Galle Road. 4. Deed of Transfer No. 85 written
Extent : 00A., OOR., 12P. and attested by K. J. M. Fernando,
Notary Public on 22.08.1986.

5. Deed of Gift No. 86 written and
attested by K. J. M. Fernando,
Notary Public on 22.08.1986.

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.

12-395
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My No. : RG/NB/11/2/30/2013/8g/es1.

NOTICE UNDER THE LAND REGISTERS RECONSTRUCTED FOLIO ORDINANCE (CAP.120)

I HEREBY give notice under Section 04 of the Land Registers Reconstructed Folio Ordinance (Cap. 120) that Land Register Folios,
particulars of which appear in Column 1 of the Schedule hereto, affecting the lands described in Column 2, there of which have been
found to be missing or torn, have been reconstructed in full in provincial folios and relate to the connected deeds, particulars of

which are shown in Column 3 of the said Schedule.

2. The provisional folio will be opened for inspection by any person or persons interested therein at the Office of the
Registrar of Lands, Colombo, 13.12.2013 to 27.12.2013 between the hours of 10.00 a. m. to 3.00 p. m. on all working days.

3. Any person desirous of lodging any objection against any entry included in a provisional folio or against any of the
particulars contained in any such entry and any person desiring to make a claim for the insertion of any entry or of any particulars
alleged to have been improperly omitted from any entry must do so, by an objection or claim in writing addressed to the undersigned
which must be sent under registered cover and must reach the Office of the Registrar General not later than 03.01.2014. The matter
in respect of which the objection or claim in made must be clearly and fully set out in the objection or claim, and the objection or
claim must be accompanied by all documentary evidence relies upon the support of it.

SCHEDULE
Particulars of Damaged Particulars of Land Particulars of Deeds Registered
Folios of the Land Registers
Folio No. 129 of volume 383 All that allotment of Land marked Lot 07 1. Deed of Conveyance No. 19
Division A of the Land depicted in plan No. 2183 dated 01.11.1935 written and attested by
Registry, Colombo in Colombo made by R. A. Rodrigo, licensed Surveyor M. L. Martyn, Notary Public
District. and bearing assessment No. 35 of the land on 31.03.1958

situated at Flower Road, Cinnamon Garden
within the Municipality and District of Colombo, 2. Deed of Conveyance No. 903
Western Province bounded on the, written and attested by
Fernando, Notary Public on

North by : Lot 06; 11.06.1965

Eastby  :Lot05;

South by : The property of the Victor de

Mel;
West by  : Flower Road.
Extent : 00A., O1R., 00P.

E. M. GUNASEKARA,
Registrar General.

Registrar General’s Department,
No. 234/A3,
Denzil Kobbekaduwa Mawatha,
Battaramulla.

12-625
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Revenue & Expenditure Returns
DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Public Service Provident Fund

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR, 2011

2. Review of the Board of Management:

2.1 Objective

The objective and the purpose of the Fund, is to afford Provident Fund benefits to those Public Servants who are, not pensionable.

2.2 Functions

The main functions of the P. S. P. F. are,

(a)

(®)
(©

(@

to recover and credit the Fund by an amount equivalent to 8% of the monthly salaries of those who are non-pensionable and
are serving in the various departments of the Island and in the foreign missions abroad;

to receive the contributions and to store, such contributions in a methodical manner;

to process and maintain individual accounts of such contributors to enable the contributors to be notified of the amount lying
to their credit at the end of each financial year, and refund the benefits at the end of contributor’s service;

to invest the excess money of the Fund in “Government securities” to enable the contributors to secure a higher interest and
appropriate such interest, at the end of every financial year.

2.3 Performance Appraisal :

(a)

(b)

Financial Results

The amount received as Compulsory contribution and Government Bonus during the year under review was Rs. 691,647,282
and Rs. 788,455,187 respectively, while the contributions received during the Year 2010 was Rs. 699,295,538 and
Rs. 937,496,299 respectively. The total income from investment of the Fund after tax was Rs. 2,436,213,602 as compared
with Rs. 2,601,861,541 last year. After providing for administrative expenses of the fund amounting to Rs. 9,905,543 a sum
of Rs. 2,426,308,059 was available for appropriation as interest to the contributors. The percentage of interest thus available
was 9.19% as compared with the percentage of interest of 11.03% during the pervious year. However, the percentage of
interest rounded up to the nearest quarter being 9.15% amounting to Rs. 2,451,793,244 was appropriated and the balance
amounting to Rs. 12,070,246 was transferred to the General Reserve.

Improvement :

(1) Refunds made under the fund

Application received during the Year 2011 6,699
Number of refunds approved 9,836
Section under which the refunds made:
Rs.

Section 20 - 8,519
Section 14 - 1,148
Section 16 - 68
Erroneous recoveries - 101

Total 9,836

(i)) Membership

Number of members as at 01.01.2011 - 232,665

Number of registration during the year - 5,797
Number of refunds awarded - 9,836
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2.4 Accounting Policies :
(a) Basis of Accounting

The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals and the provision of the
Public Service Provident Fund Ordinance No. 18 of 1942.

(b) Rent Electricity and Water Supply
The Board of Management of the Public Service Provident Fund decided to bear the expenses of Rent, Electricity and Water

Supply from the Fund commencing from the year 1993. The expenses already incurred by the Director of Pensions have been
provided in the accounts on the following basis.

Expense Basis
Rent and Electricity Floor area
Water Supply No. of employees

(c) Fixed Assets and Depreciation
(i) The cost of fixed assets is stated at their purchase price.

(if) No depreciation is charged in the year of purchase and is provided in the year of disposal.
(iii) Depreciation is provided at the following rates on reducing balance method.

Percentage
Furniture and Fittings 10
Office Equipment 10
Computer Equipment 15
(d) Revenue Recognition - Interest Income :
(i) Interest income
Interest receivable is generally recognised on an accrued basis.
(i1)) Contribution collection
Contribution received is recognised on cash basis.
(e) Investment :
Investments are stated in the Balance Sheet at cost.
3.5 Notes to the Accounts
3.5.1 Interest Income 2011 2010
Rs. Rs.
Interest received during the year 2,301,430,375 2,182,588,177
Capital gain/(loss) on Investment 84,435,788 363,823,344
2,385,866,163 2,546,411,521
Less:- Interest receivable as at 1st Jan. 782,875,802 728,519,239
Add:- Provision for Tax 8,283,085 9,376,543

Interest received for the year
Add:-
Interest receivable as at 31st December

1,611,273,446

1,827,268,825

Rupee Loans 2,333,437 80,405,975
Treasury Bills 32,637 13,599
Fixed Deposit 2,445,615 2,424,876
Treasury Bonds 820,557,458 700,031,352

825,369,148 782,875,802
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3.5.2

3.5.3

3.54

3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.7

2011 2010
Rs. Rs.
Less: Provision for Taxation 428,993 8,283,085
Interest for the year 2,436,213,602 2,601,861,542
Fixed Assets
Furniture Office Computer Total
and Fitting Equipment Equipment Value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cost
As at 01.01.2011 48,946 665,315 696,275 1,410,536
Additions - —
As at 31.12.2011 48,946 665,315 696,275 1,410,536
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 01.01.2011 34,945 471,653 446,111 952,709
Charge for the Year 1,400 19,366 37,524 58,290
As at 31.12.2011 36,345 491,019 483,636 1,010,999
Net book value as at 31.12.2011 12,601 174,296 212,640 399,537
Net book value as at 31.12.2010 14,001 193,662 250,164 457,827
Investment

The purchase price of the Investments with the Central Bank was Rs. 25,363 millions.

Govt. Contribution Receivable

This represents the Government Contribution receivable from the Consolidated Fund being 12 % on the compulsory contribution
of the contributors, which is 8 %.

Adjustment Accounts

This account represents the net result of the erroneous debits and credits raised by the various departments. The balance in this
account gets adjusted when the erroneous debits and credits are, adjusted by such departments.

Accumulated Fund

This account represents the amount lying to the credit of the contributors being the share of contributions of the contributors
and the interest thereon together with the Government contributions with interest.

General Reserve
The balance in this account is the amount after appropriation of interest to the nearest quarter percent. A sum of

Rs. 12,070,246 being the balance after appropriation was transferred to this account and the balance as at 31.12.2011 was
Rs. 12,070,246.
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3.5.8 Accrued Expenses

This represents the expenses charged from the consolidated fund during the year under review, including Rs. 276,637 paid by
the Department of Pensions as electricity and water.

2011 2010
Electricity and Water 276,637 194,234
Administration 9,455,615 7,837,078

9,732,252 8,031,312

S. N. HAPUARACHCHI, K. A. THILAKARATNE,

Secretary and Accountant Director General of Pensions and
Board of Management Chairman, Board of Management
Public Service Provident Fund

28th February, 2012.

Public Service Provident Fund
28th February, 2012.

Public Service Provident Fund

Receipts and Payments Account for the Year Ended 31st December, 2011

2011 Rs. cts 2010
Rs. cts Rs. cts
Balance with D. S. T. s a/c as at 01st January 1,798,990,925 2,043,771,928
Receipts
Compulsory Contribution 691,647,282 699,295,538
Government Contribution 788,455,187 937,496,299
Interest Income 2,404,285,209 2,565,082,522
Erroneous 41,048,973 122,545

Investments Realised

5,814,190,020

9,739,626,671

7,724,892,600

11,926,889,504

Less :

Payments
Compulsory Contribution 592,749,203 326,079,352
Government Contribution 64,245,404 74,477,134
Unpaid Govt. Bonus Transferred

to Consolidated Fund 699,652,404 393,209,150

Administration Expenses 8,031,312 7,111,599
Creditors
Audit Fees
Erroneous 50,213,530 11,319,647

Improvement of Fixed Assets
Adjustment (income and expenditure A/c)

Investments

Balance with D. S. T’s A/c as at 31st December

8,873,852,649

(549,117,831)
1,249,873,094

11,359,473,626

(244,781,004)
1,798,990,925
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Income

Interest Income before tax
Less :- Tax on Interest

Interest Income after tax
Less : Expenditure

Electricity

Water

Personal Emoluments

Traveling

Stationary and Office Requisites

Repairs and Maintenance

Transportation, Communication and
Holiday Warrants

Depreciation

Uniforms

Other Recurrent expenditure

Audit fees

Income Over Expenditure
Add:- Transfer from General Reserve

Income Available for Appropriation
to the Contributors

Public Service Provident Fund
Income and Expenditure Account for the Year Ended 31st December, 2011

Appropriation of Interest to the Contributors

Compulsory Contribution
Voluntary Contribution
Government Contribution

Balance of Interest After Appropriation
Transferred to/(From) General Reserve

Assets

Non Current Assets

Furniture and Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

Investment at cost
Current Assets

Interest Receivable
Govt. Contribution receivable

Note 2011 2010
Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts Rs. cts
2,444,907,393 2,637,973,583
8,693,790 36,112,042
2,436,213,602 2,601,861,541
231,967 159,856
44,670 34,378
9,255,751 7,651,567
— 0
17,715 18,170
167,899 164,641
58,291 67,220
14,250 2,700
115,000 9,905,543 173,040 8,271,573
2,426,308,059 2,593,589,969
37,555,430
2,463,863,489 2,593,589,969
980,081,160 1,033,273,467
1,604,800 1,738,079

1,470,107,284

2,451,793,244

1,552,479,573

2,587,491,119

12,070,246

Public Service Provident Fund
Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2011

Note
Rs. cts

12,601
174,296
212,640

825,369,148
2,147,647,821

2011

Rs. cts

399,537

25,363,249,030

Rs. cts

14,001
193,662
250,164

782,875,802
1,904,165,223

6,098,850

2010

Rs. cts

457,827

22,322,005,446
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Assets

Adjustment A/c
prepayment
Balance with D. S. T’ A/c

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities

Accumulated Fund
Compulsory Contribution
Voluntary Contribution
Government Contribution

Reserves
Capital reserve
General reserve

Current Liabilities
Accrued Audit Fees
Provision for Taxation
Creditors
Accrued Expenses

Total Equity and Liabilities

S. N. HAPUARACHCHI,
Secretary and Accountant
Board of Management

Public Service Provident Fund
28th February, 2012.

My No. : PY/F/PSPF/2011/2012/04.

The Director General of Pensions,

Department of Pensions.

Note

Rs. cts

18,326,537
39,780,214
1,249,873,093

2011
Rs. cts

4,280,996,813

Rs. cts

12,850,740
39,780,214
1,798,990,925

2010
Rs. cts

4,538,662,903

11,714,315,483
19,143,595

17,888,009,781

3,790

12,070,246

941,241
428,993

9,732,252

29,644,645,380

29,621,468,859

12,074,036

11,102,486

10,639,025,003
17,538,795

16,149,862,521

3,790

37,555,430

826,241
8,283,085

8,031,312

26,861,126,177

26,8006,426,319

37,559,220

17,140,638

29,644,645,380

K. A. THILAKARATNE,

Director General of Pensions and
Chairman, Board of Management
Public Service Provident Fund
28th February, 2012.

06th July, 2012.

26,861,126,177

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Public Service Provident Fund for the year ended 31st

December, 2011

THE audit of financial statements of the Public Service Provident Fund for the year ended 31st December, 2011 comprising the balance sheet
as at 31st December, 2011 and the income statement, and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) of
the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 24 (1) of the Public Service Provident
Fund Ordinance (Cap 621). My comments and observation on the above financial statements appear in this report.

1:2 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and for such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

1:3 Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with
Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those Standards require I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.
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1.4

An audit involves procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgements, including the assessment of risks of material misstatements of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Fund’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates made by managment, as well as evaluating
the overall presentaion of financial statements.

I believe that audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
My opinon is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report.

2. Financial Statements

2.1

2:2

(a)

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Public Service Provident Fund as at 31st December, 2011 and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Comments on Financial Statements
2:2:1 Accounting Deficiencies

(a) According to the provisions in Section 7 (1) of the Public Service Provident Fund Ordinance, a sum equivalent to 1.5 times of
the Compulsory Contribution should be credited to the Fund by the Government as the Government Bonus. Even though the
sum of Rs. 17,571,473,225 equivalent to the 1.5 times of the compulsory contribution balance amounting to Rs. 11,714,315,483
as at 31st December, 2011 should be available with Fund as the Government bonus that balance amounted to Rs. 17,888,009,781.
As such the Government Bonus Account had been overstated by a sum of Rs. 316,536,556.

(b) The sum of Rs. 39,780,214 shown in the books of the Fund as at the beginning of the year under review as prepayments to the
Consolidated Fund, had been shown in the balance sheet as current assets without being adjusted to the payments made to the
Consolidated Fund in the year under review. As such Government bonus had been understated by that amount while the
appropriation of profits to the Government Bonus Account in the year under review had been understated by a sum of
Rs. 303,324

2:2:2 Suspense Accounts
The balance of the Suspense Account shown as the Adjustment Account in the balance sheet as at the end of the year under
review amounted to Rs. 18,326,537. This balance brought forward over a long period had not been settled even by 30th April,
2012.

2:2:3 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

The Following non-compliances were observed.

References to Laws, Rules and Non-compliances
Regulations
Public Service Provident Fund
Ordinance (Cap 621)
(1) Section 2 (2) Individual accounts in respect of each contributor had not been
maintained.
(i1) Section 25 Even though the Director General of Pensions should at the end of

each financial year, inform the balances of members’ accounts as at
31st December, it had not been so done.
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(®)

Reference to Laws, Rules and Non-compliance
Regulations
Paragraph 04.3(f) of the Public Finance A certificate that the balance lying to the credit of the Fund as at the
Circular No. PF/423 of 22nd December, 2006 end of the year under review had been reconciled with the Treasury

Books had not been furnished with the Financial Statements.

3. Financial Review :

3.1

Financial Results

According to the Financial Statements presented, the financial results for the year under review before appropriation to the contributors
amounted to a surplus of Rs. 2,426,308,059 as compared with the corresponding surplus of Rs. 2,593,589,969 for the preceding year
and a deterioration of a Rs. 167,281,910 was indicated. The decrease of the interest income by a sum of Rs. 165,647,939 or 6.4 per
cent due to the decrease of the rate of interest in the year under review as compared with preceding year had been the main reason for
the decrease is the surplus.

4. Operating Review :

4.1

(a)

@
(i)
(iif)
(iv)

(®)

4:2

4:3

Performance
The following observations are made:-

The expected targets of the activities of the Fund according to the Action Plan for the year 2011 and the actual achievements are given
below.

Activity Expected Target ~ As at 31st December; 2011
Actual Position Percentage
Registration of Contributors 8,000 5,797 72.5%
Collection of Contributions (Rs. Millions) 2,000 1,480 74.0%
Investment of Additional Money (Rs. Millions) 3,000 3,041 101.4%
Payment of Benefits to Contributors (Rs. Millions) 250 657 262.8%

According to the above data, the expected targets had not been achieved in 02 instances and the expected targets had been exceeded
in 02 instances. It was observed that the target for the payment of benefits to the contribution had been set unrealisticality.

According to the Management Analysis of the Fund appearing in the financial statements furnished to audit for the year under review
the maintenance of the accounts in a manner to enable the balances as at the end of the year to be furnished to the contributors had been
shown as one of the 04 main activities directed towards the objectives of the Fund. Nevertheless, the individual Accounts had not been
maintained in the updated manner to enable the individual account balances as at end of the year to be informed to the contributors.

Interest Percentage Entitlement to Members

The interest percentage given to the contributions during the year under review and preceding 10 years had fluctuated between 11.85
percent and 7.1 percent. The interest percentage paid to the contributors in the year under review as compared was the preceding year
had decreased by 1.81 percent.

Interest Income Lost by the Fund

As the Government bonus receivables from the Secretary to the Treasury had not been received by the Fund, the interest that could

have been earned by investing that money had been deprived to the Fund. The interest so deprived to the Fund in the year under
review and the preceeding the 05 years is as follows.
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Year Amount Receivable Interest Income that could have Interest lost as a
from the Treasury as at been earned by investing money Percentage of the
31st December receivable in Treasury Bonds Surplus for the year

Rs. Rs. %
2006 1,013,381,581 154,034,000 14.6
2007 1,451,131,498 206,060,673 18.8
2008 1,799,238,475 307,669,779 21.8
2009 1,792,715,215 277,890,858 11.6
2010 1,904,165,223 166,614,457 6.4
2011 2,147,647,821 186,201,066 7.7

1,298,450,833

According to the above observation, the investments interest income deprived to the Fund during the immediate past 06 years amounted
to Rs. 1,298 milllion approximately.

4:4 Utilization of Cadre
The number of members of the Fund by the year under review as compared with the year 2003 had improved by 37.73 percent.

Nevertheless there was not appreciable change in the cadre available for carrying out the functions of the Fund and as such the number
of members attended to by each officer had increased. The position relating to the year under review and preceding 08 years is given

below.
Year Number of Cadre Number of Members
Members Attended to by one officer

2003 166,000 27 6,148

2004 173,000 27 6,407

2005 197,951 27 7,332

2006 208,012 27 7,104

2007 217,905 27 8,070

2008 221,512 27 8,204

2009 232,779 27 8,621

2010 232,665 27 8,617

2011 228,626 27 6,928

The increase of the ratio of Members to staff had been the reason for the regular delay in carrying out the functions of the Fund.
4:5 Payment of Benefits to Members
Out of the applications, made by the members of the Fund for the benefits in the year under review, payments on 1,772 applications

had not been made by 31st December, 2011 and that represented 15.3 percent of the total number. The position of the year under
review and 05 preceding years is given below.

Year Number of Number of Number of Percentage of
Applications Applications Paid Applications not Applications not paid
for Payments in the year Paid in the year in the Year (%)
%
2006 1,103 622 481 43.6
2007 2,432 1,776 656 27.0
2008 4,014 3,289 725 18.1

2009 6,151 4,194 1,957 31.8
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Year

2010
2011

Number of Number of Number of Percentage of
Applications Applications Paid Applications not Applications not paid
for Pyaments in the year Paid in the year in the Year (%)
9,787 5,882 3,905 39.9
11,608 9,836 1,772 15.3

4:6 Management Inefficiencies

According to Circular No. 1/97/of 31st July, 1997 and No. 14/2006 of 30th October, 2006 of the Director General of Pensions, an
advice on the money credited to the Fund in each month, should be furnished to the Secretary of the Fund by the institutions
concerned before 15th day of the month following. Nevertheless, a few institutions only had furnished the advices. The progress of
the procedure of the Fund to get down the advices had not reached the expected level.

5. Systems and Controls

Deficiencies in system and controls observed during course of audit were brought to the notice of the Director General of Pensions
from time to time. Special attention is needed in respect of the following arrears of control:-

(@)
(b)
(©

Accounting;
Member’s Contributions;
Follow up action on Audit Observations.

H.A.S. SAMARAWEERA,
Auditor General.

Observations of the Management Board of Public Service Provident Fund regarding the report of the Auditor General concerning
the accounts of Public Service Provident Fund for the year ending 31.12.2011.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2:2:1

()

()

2:2:2

(a)

Accounting Deficiencies

This surplus remained for a long period and generally an amount equal to 15 times of the compulsory contribution should be
credited to the government bonus money. Reason for this surplus had been the delay of applying for the awards by members
after the termination of membership. However, since these awards are made only to the date on which the membership
terminated, the balance money usually remained in the account. Since the interests received by re-investing these money is also
credited to the government bonus caused to the increase of this surplus. Further the money remained in the account of
membership terminated persons is also invested until they receive the awards. The interest received by these investments is
also credited to the member’s accounts which caused to the surplus.

The difference can be corrected by adjusting with the Treasury books and these adjustments have been done by the monthly
account summary of month of February, 2012. The transfer sheets are forwarded herewith.

Receivable and payable accounts

Even though the Departments and Ministries that maintained erroneous debits for over 5 years are regularly notified in written
and by telephone to settle the balance, those institutions have not taken any positive action to settle the same. Therefore it has
been difficult to settle these balances. However the action has been taken to correct most erroneous debits of year 2010 and
2011 within the year concerned.

No unsettled erroneous debits for year 2008, 2009, 2010 are available and it was already informed the authorities by letters and
telephone to settle the erroneous debits remained for over 4 years. It is regret to inform that these institutions have been
abstained from providing past information.
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2:2:3 Non-compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations
(A) Public Service Provident Fund Ordinance (Ordinance 621)
(1) (2) Section (2) 2
It has been difficult to make immediate corrections to these errors due to unavailability of proper maintenance of single
accounts from the beginning of the fund. However the steps have been taken to maintain single accounts under the
e-pensions project. Therefore it is believed that these matters would be settled under the e-pensions project since the
financial provisions have not allocated to any other programme.

(if) Section 25

We are hopeful that this issue will be solved as the facility to inform balances to the members is available under the
e-pension project which already completed the pilot program.

3. I (3)(b)
Agree. Noted to follow this during the forthcoming financial year.
(B) Para. 04.03 (e) of Public Finance Circular PF/423 dated 22nd December, 2006 relevant letter is attached herewith.
The Treasury has not issued a separated letter noticing to inform the balances but when inquired the Treasury we have not
received any reply in that regard. The quarterly submitted reconciliation report has been submitted on 05.04.2012 and it is

forwarded herewith since it contained with the details of last balance.

Relevant letter is forwarded herewith.

3. Financial and operating review

3.1

32

Financial consequences
Agreed.

Analytical financial consequences review
Agreed.

4. Operational review

4.1

4.2

43

44

Interest percentage of the members

As aresult of decline of interest rates (Year 2011), the appropriated interest percentage also have been dropped-down.

The lost interest revenue of the Fund

Letters have been sent to the Secretary to the Treasury informing the decrease in appropriated interest percentage due to irregularity
of receiving imprest for Government bonus and to settle the account balance of the Deputy Secretary to the Treasury and a discussion
in this regard also have been held with the patronage of Director General of Treasury Operations. This was informed also to the

Secretary to the Finance Ministry by letter dated 16.03.2009 but the money not received yet. However this situation can still
prevailed due to not receipt of money to settle the account balance of Deputy Secretary to the Treasury.

Staff resource

Comparing to previous years we were able to reduce the delays by 62% as a result of recruitment of additional 08 officers and utility
of existing resources with maximum efficiency.

Benefit payments for members

A considerable number of increases in the applications to draw benefits could observe during Year 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 though
there was no increase in the number of staff comparing the workload ultimately caused to delay in the process. To overcome this
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difficulty and expedite the payments, we introduced a special project by attaching 8 officers temporarily. Accordingly we were able
to reduce the 39.9% unpaid applications of year 2009 up to 15.3%.

4.5 Performance

(a) Though we expected 8000 registrations in the fund, the membership enrolment could be done on the basis of receipt of
applications only. Therefore it is difficult to achieve the expected targets as the membership registrations done on the basis of

applications received.

The success of collecting contributions has been 74% only and the irregularity of receiving government bonus has been caused
to this. The additional fund investment has been 101.4% and it is a reach to the expected targets. The benefit payments to the
contributors have been dramatically increased as 262.8% due to payment of benefits to the reserve police officers and other P.
S. P. F. benefitted officers since they were received permanent posts on government policy decisions. The expected target of
issuing awards has been increased as a result of the method used to expedite the award payments.

(b) We believe that the already initiated e-pension project would make solutions for these issues.

4.6 Management weaknesses

Even though the all departments and ministries were educated to submit credit notices by the circular 14/2006 dated 30.10.2006
in addition to the circular 1/97, the institutions concerned have maintained a procedure of sending a list with cheques or different
manner without sending credit notices. As a result of these irresponsive conducts of the institutions, the fund could not meet with
the expected targets of its productive implements. Having identified these issues the Public Service Provident Fund has introduced
an instruction manual along with Circular 04/2010 dated 25.05.2010 and it is expected the fund would be achieved the progress
predicted. As the success of all these actions depends on the reactions of other instituions it has been difficult to achieve the

expected goals at some times.

5. Systems and Control
Recorded to act accordingly.

12-348

K. A. THILAKARATNE,
Director General of Pensions,
Chairman of Management Board of PSPF.

Miscellaneous Departmental Notices

PV 10809.

COMPANIES ACT, No.07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
“Manabharana Associates (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Manabharana
Associates (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
“23.10.2006” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not

carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Duwalage Nihal Ranjan Siriwardena,
Registrar General of Companies (Cover up Duty), acting under
Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby

give notice that at the expiration of three months from this date, the
name of “Manabharana Associates (Private) Limited”, will unless
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register of

Companies kept in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. NIHAL RANJAN SIRIWARDENA,
Registrar General of Companies.

(Cover up Duty).

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.

15th November, 2013.

12-462
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PV 60621.
COMPANIES ACT, No.07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
“Vidath Trading Company (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “Vidath Trading
Company (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated on
“12.07.2007” under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Duwalage Nihal Ranjan Siriwardena,
Registrar General of Companies (Cover up Duty), acting under
Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby
give notice that at the expiration of three months from this date, the
name of “Vidath Trading Company (Private) Limited”, will unless
cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register of
Companies kept in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. NiHAL RANJAN SIRIWARDENA,
Registrar General of Companies.
(Cover up Duty).

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.

15th November, 2013.

12-461

PB 29 PV.
COMPANIES ACT, No.07 OF 2007

Notice under Section 394 (3) to Strike off the Name of
“James Finlay Plantation Holdings (Private) Limited”

WHEREAS there is reasonable cause to believe that “James Finlay
Plantation Holdings (Private) Limited”, a Company Incorporated
on “25.01.1996” under the Companies Act, No. 17 of 1982 is not
carrying on business or in operation.

Now know you that I, Duwalage Nihal Ranjan Siriwardena,
Registrar General of Companies (Cover up Duty), acting under
Section 394 (3) of the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007, do hereby
give notice that at the expiration of three months from this date, the
name of “James Finlay Plantation Holdings (Private) Limited”, will
unless cause is shown to the contrary, be struck off the Register of
Companies kept in this office and the Company will be dissolved.

D. NiHAL RANJAN SIRIWARDENA,
Registrar General of Companies.
(Cover up Duty).

Department of Registrar of Companies,
No. 400, D. R. Wijewardena Mawatha,
Colombo 10.

15th November, 2013.

12-460

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath

Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 0f1990 amended
by No. 01 of 2011 and No. 19 0of 2011

S R Yapa.
A/C No. : 1103 5563 9372.

AT ameeting held on29th November, 2012 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Sarath Rubasinghe Yapa in the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the
repayment of the credit facility granted against the security of the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 727 dated
30th March, 2010 attested by K. L. M. D. Kithsiri of Rathnapura,
Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the said Bond
No. 727 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 09th October, 2012
asum of Rupees Five Million One Hundred and Sixty-two Thousand
Six Hundred and Thirty-eight and cents Twenty-six only
(Rs. 5,162,638.26) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total
amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of
1990 do hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC
aforesaid as security for the said credit facility by the said Bond
bearing No. 727 to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya,
Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Five Million One Hundred and Sixty-two Thousand Six
Hundred and Thirty-eight and cents Twenty-six only
(Rs. 5,162,638.26) together with further interest on a sum of Rupees
Four Million Eight Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand Sixteen and
cents Eighty-three only (Rs. 4,888,016.83) at the rate of Sixteen per
centum (16%) per annum from 10th October, 2012 to date of
satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing No. 727
together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred less
payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 3456 dated 06th December, 2009 made by
E. T. P. Perera, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Galewatta”
together with the soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything
else standing and together with all rights, ways, privileges, easements,
servitudes and appurtenances thereto belonging situated at Hunuwala,
North Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of Weligepola in
Helapalla Pattu of Meda Korale in the District of Ratnapura
Sabaragamuwa Province and which said Lot 1 is bounded on the
North by part of the same land, on the East by part of the same land,
onthe Southby Lot4 inPlanNo. 2723 by M. S. Diyagama, Licensed
Surveyor and part of the same land and on the West by part of the
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same land and containing in extent Thirty-five decimal Two Perches

(0A., OR., 35.2P.) according to the said Plan No. 3456. Registered

in Volume/Folio E 167/288 at the Land Registry, Rathnapura.
Together with the right of way over and along:

Lot Nos. 1 and 4 depicted in the said Plan No. 2723 dated 13th
December, 1992 made by M. S. Diyagama, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,
Company Secretary.

12-598

BANK OF CEYLON
Correction Notice

THIS has reference to the 2 Gazette Notifications published by the
Bank of Ceylon-Borella Super Grade Branch in connection with
“M/S Sanvo Global (Pvt) Ltd firstly under section 21 of the Bank
of Ceylon Ordinance in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka No. 1829 0f20.09.2013 and secondly under
Section 22 of the Bank of Ceylon Ordinance in the Gazette of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka No. 1836 0f08.11.2013.

Therein, the name of one of the Directors of the aforesaid
company has been erroneously published as “Ms. Thushari
Kasturiarachchi Madduma Patabendi”. This should be corrected to
read as “Ms. Thushani Kasturiarachchi Madduma Patabendi”.

A. M. R. D. SUBASINGHE,
ChiefManager.

Bank of Ceylon,
Borella Super Grade Branch.

12-558

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath

Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act,No. 04 0f1990 amended
by No. 01 of 2011 and No. 19 0of2011

Sarath Rathnayake, The sole Proprietor of Rathnaloka
International.
A/C Nos. : 0006 5005 0975 and 0006 1000 8992.

AT ameeting held on 31st October, 2013 by the Board of Directors
of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and unanimously:

Whereas Sarath Rathnayake alias Hitihamy Mudiyanselage
Sarath Bandara Rathnayake being the Sole Proprietor of Rathnaloka
International in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka as the
Obligor has made default in the repayment of the credit facilities
granted against the security of the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged and hypothecated by the
Mortgage Bond Nos. 5548 dated 02nd February, 2001, 6067 dated
14th February, 2003, 6458 dated 07th May, 2004 attested by S. W.
P. M. G. B. Senanayake, 2084 dated 26th September, 2008, 2682
dated 20th July, 2010 and 2763 dated 29th October, 2010 attested
by A.J. Bandara of Kurunegala Notaries Public in favour of Sampath
Bank PLC holding Company No. PQ 144 and having its registered
office at No. 110, Sir James Peiris Mawatha, Colombo 02 and there
isnow due and owing on the said Bonds Nos. 5548, 6067, 6458,2084,
2682 and 2763 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 25th July, 2013
a sum of Rupees Six Million One Hundred and One Thousand One
Hundred and Twenty only (Rs. 6,101,120) of lawful money of Sri
Lanka being the total amount outstanding together with interest on
the said Bonds and the Board of Directors of Sampath Bank PLC
aforesaid under the powers vested by the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of 1990 do hereby resolve
that the property and premises morefully described in the Schedule
hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as security for the
said credit facilities by the said Bonds bearing Nos. 5548, 6067, 6458,
2084,2682 and 2763 to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya,
Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Six Million One Hundred and One Thousand One Hundred
and Twenty only (Rs. 6,101,120) together with further interest on
a sum of Rupees Two Million Five Hundred and Thirty-three
Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-four and cents Seventy-five only
(Rs. 2,533,664.75) at the rate of Fourteen decimal Five per centum
(14.5%) per annum further interest on a further sum of Rupees Seven
Hundred and Seventeen Thousand Five and cents Thirty only
(Rs. 717,005.30) at the rate of Seventeen per centum (17%) per
annum further interest on a further sum of Rupees Three Hundred
and Seventy-five Thouand Three Hundred and Two and cents Nine
only (Rs. 375,302.09) at the rate of Twenty per centum (20%) per
annum and further interest on a further sum of Rupees One Million
Five Hundred Thousand only (Rs. 1,500,000) at the rate of Eighteen
per centum (18%) per annum from 26th July, 2013 to date of
satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bonds bearing
Nos. 5548, 6067, 6458,2084, 2682 and 2763 together with costs of
advertising and other charges incurred less payments (if any) since
received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 01
depicted in Plan No. 3723 dated 22nd January, 2001 made by Sarath
Welagedara, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Welangolla
Estate” together with the soil, trees, plantations, Buildings and
everything else standing thereon together with all rights, ways,
privileges, easements, servitudes and appertenances thereto belonging
bearing Assessment No. 37 situated along 1stlane of Welengollawatta
inthe Village of Yanthampalawa in Ward No. 02 within the Municipal
Council Limits of Kurunegala within the Grama Niladhari Division
of831-Kurunegala Town North and Divisional Secretariat Division
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of Kurunegala in Thiragandahaya Korale of Weuda Willi Hathpattu
in the District of Kurunegla North Western Province and which said
Lot01 isbounded on the North by land belonging to N. M. Somadasa,
on the East by land belonging to Malani Rathnayake, on the South
by land belonging to Wimalasiri and on the Westby Welangolla01st
Lane (Municipal Council Road) and containing in extent Thirty-
three decimal One Perches (0A., OR., 33.1P.) or 0.0837 Hectares
according to the said Plan No. 3723.

Which said Lot 01 is a re-survey of the land morefully described
below:

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 18
depicted in Plan No. 231 dated 07th, 08th, 09th and 10th day of
December, 1960 made by M. D. Fernando, Licensed Surveyor ofthe
land called “Welangolla Estate’ together with the soil, trees,
plantations, buildings and everything else standing thereon together
with all rights, ways, privileges, easements, servitudes and
appurtenances thereto belonging bearing Assessment No. 37 sitauted
along 01st Lane of Welangollawatta aforesaid and which said Lot 18
is bounded on the North by Lot 19, on the East by Lot 07, on the
South by Lot 17 and on the West by Road Reservation (20 feet wide)
and containing in extent Thirty-three decimal One Perches (0A.,0R.,
33.1P.) according to the said Plan No. 231 and registered in Volume/
Folio A 1694/239 at the Land Registry Kurunegala.

By order of the Board,
Group Company Secretary.

12-597/1

SAMPATH BANK PLC
(Formerly known as Sampath Bank Limited)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Sampath

Bank PLC under Section 04 of the Recovery of Loans by

Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 0f1990 amended
by No. 01 of 2011 and No. 19 0of 2011

U. R. Batagoda.
A/C No. : 1071 5000 4720.

AT a meeting held on 26th September, 2013 by the Board of
Directors of Sampath Bank PLC it was resolved specially and
unanimously:

Whereas Upul Ranjan Batagoda in the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka as the Obligor has made default in the
repayment of the credit facility granted against the security of the
property and premises morefully described in the Schedule hereto
mortgaged and hypothecated by the Mortgage Bond No. 509 dated
25th January, 2007 attested by 1. . R. Weragoda of Gampaha,

Notary Public in favour of Sampath Bank PLC holding Company
No. PQ 144 and there is now due and owing on the said Bonds
No. 509 to Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid as at 26th August, 2013 a
sum of Rupees Seven Million Three Hundred and Eighty-eight
Thousand Nine Hundred and Eighty-five and cents Thirty-two only
(Rs. 7,388,985.32) of lawful money of Sri Lanka being the total
amount outstanding on the said Bond and the Board of Directors of
Sampath Bank PLC aforesaid under the powers vested by the
Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 04 of
1990, do hereby resolve that the property and premises morefully
described in the Schedule hereto mortgaged to Sampath Bank PLC
aforesaid as security for the said credit facility by the said Bond
bearing No. 509 to be sold in public auction by I. W. Jayasuriya,
Licensed Auctioneer of Kandy for the recovery of the said sum of
Rupees Seven Million Three Hundred and Eighty-eight Thousand
Nine Hundred and Eighty-five and cents Thirty-two only
(Rs.7,388,985.32) together with further interest on a sum of Rupees
Six Million Eight Hundred Thousand only (Rs. 6,800,000) at the rate
of Fifteen per centum (15%) per annum from 27th August, 2013 to
date of satisfaction of the total debt due upon the said Bond bearing
No. 509 together with costs of advertising and other charges incurred
less payments (if any) since received.

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot A
depicted in Plan No. 353/1994 dated 23rd June, 1994 made by K. A.
Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the land called “Malwatta”
together with soil, trees, plantations, buildings and everything else
standing thereon and together with all rights, ways, privileges,
easements, servitudes and appurtenances thereto belonging situated
at Nambadaluwa Village within the Pradeshiya Sabha Limits of
Attanagalla (Sub Officer-Egodapotha) in Udugaha Pattu of Siyane
Korale in the District of Gampaha Western Province and which said
Lot A is bounded on the North by Lots 21 and 22, on the East by
Lot 1in Plan No. 2258, on the South by Lot 2B in Plan No. 2282 and
on the West by Lot 7 in Plan No. 2258 and containing in extent
Twenty-one decimal Eight Five Perches (0A.,OR.,21.85P.) according
to the said Plan No. 353/1994 aforesaid and registered in Volume/
Folio F 257/205 at the Land Registry Gampaha.

Together with the right of ways over and along:

Lot 22 in Plan No. 190/1984 dated 10th July, 1984 made by K.
A.Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor. Lot 7 in Plan No. 2258 dated 09th
January, 1980 made by A. F. Sameer, Licensed Surveyor.

By order of the Board,

Group Company Secretary.

12-597/2
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SEYLAN BANK PLC—GANEMULLA BRANCH
(Registered under Ref. PQ9 according to the Companies
Act,No. 7 0f2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan
Bank PLC under Section 4 of the Recovery of Loans by
Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990

Account No. : 0600-02612350-101.

IT is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting
held on 12.09.2013 by the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC
it was resolved specially and unanimously.

“Whereas Gnanalatha Chandani Samaraweera of Gonawala as
“Obligor” has made default in payment due on Bond No. 44 dated
20th August, 2007 attested by A. G. S. P. Dias, Notary Public in
favour of Seylan Bank PLC (Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according
tothe Companies Act, No. 7 0f2007) and there is now due and owing
tothe Seylan Bank PLC as at 03rd July, 2013 a sum of Rupees Sixteen
Million Six Hundred and Seventy Thousand Three Hundred and
Seventeen and cents Forty-five (Rs. 16,670,317.45) on the said Bond
and the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers
vested by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act,
No. 4 of 1990, do hereby resolve that the property morefully
described in the Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC
by the said Bond No. 44 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W.
Jayasuriya, Licensed Auctioneer for recovery of the said sum of Rs.
16,670,317.45 together with interest at the rate of Nine Percent (9%)
per annum from 04th July, 2013 to date of sale together with costs
of advertising, any other charges incurred less payments (if any)
sincereceived.”

THE SCHEDULE

Allthatdivided and defined Lot A depicted in Plan No. 729/2006
dated 02.07.2006 made by K. A. Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of
the land called “Batadombagahawatta” situated at Pamunuwila
Kelaniya within the Pradehiya Sabha Limits of Biyagama in Adikari
Pattu of Siyane Korale in the District of Gampaha, in the Registration
Division of Colombo, Western Province and which said Lot A is
bounded on the North by land of E. P. Nanayakkara, on the East by
land of E. P. Nanayakkara and Lot Z in Plan No. C/87/83 aforesaid,
on the South by Tissa Mawatha alias Pamunuwila Road and Lot Z
in Plan No. C/87/83 aforesaid, on the West by Road and Part of Lot
2 in Plan No. 3707 and containing in extent Two Roods and Naught
decimal Six Perches (0A., 2R., 0.6P.) together with the everything
standing thereon according to Plan No. 729/2006.

The said Lot A isan amalgamation ofthe lands as described below:

All that divided and defined Lot B1 depicted in Plan No. 6507
dated 02.10.1996 made by S. D. Liyanasuriya, Licensed Surveyor
of the land called “Batadombagahawatta” situated at Pamunuwila
Kelaniya aforesaid and which said Lot B1 is bounded on the North

by land claimed by E. P. Nanayakkara, on the East by land claimed
by E. P. Nanayakkara, on the South by Lot B2, on the West by land
claimed by E. P. Nanayakkara, and containing in extent Twenty-one
Perches (0A.,0R.,21P.) together with the everthing standing thereon
according to Plan No. 6507. Registered in C 577/199 at Colombo
Land Registry.

All that divided and defined Lot B2 depicted in Plan No. 6507
dated 02.10.1996 made by S. D. Liyanasuriya, Licensed Surveyor
of the land called “Batadombagahawatta” situated at Pamunuwila
Kelaniya aforesaid Western Province and which said Lot B2 is
bounded on the North by Lot B1, on the East by land claimed by
E.P.Nanayakkara, onthe South byland claimed by E. P. Nanayakkara,
on the West by land claimed by E. P. Nanayakkara and containing
in extent Twenty-one Perches (0A., OR., 21P.) together with the
everything standing thereon according to Plan No. 6507. Registered
in C 583/91 at Gampaha Land Registry.

All that divided and defined Lot 3 of Batadombagahawatta and
portion of Pelapolkotuwa depicted in Plan No. 729/2006 dated
02.07.2006 made by K. A. Rupasinghe, Licensed Surveyor of the
land called “Batadombagahawatta and Pelapolkotuwa” situated at
Pamunuwila Village aforesaid Western Province and which said
allotment of land is bounded on the North by Paddy field of
Ranawaka Arachchige Davith Perera, on the East by Lot B of this
land, on the South by Pamunuwila Road, on the West by Lot 2 and
containing in extent One Rood and One and Half Perches (0A., 1R.,
1 1/2P.) together with the everthing standing thereon. Registered in
C 392/104 at Gampaha Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Mrs. K. HaTcH,
Assistant General Manager-Legal.

12-541/1

SEYLAN BANK PLC—KANDY BRANCH

(Registered under Ref. PQ9 according to the Companies
Act,No. 7 0f2007)

Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Seylan
Bank PLC under Section 4 of Recovery of Loans by Banks
(Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 0f 1990

Account No. : 0170-32383135-001.

IT is hereby notified that under Section 8 of the Recovery of Loans
by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No. 4 of 1990 that at a meeting
held on 23.10.2013 by the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC
it was resolved specially and unanimously.
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“Whereas Dadallage Nandasiri Silva and Kumarapathi Mohottilage
Chithra Silva carrying on a partnership business concern under the
name style and firm of ‘Kusumsiri Suppliers’ registered with the
Provincial Registrar of Business names under reference
No. @ses/@geE/2/2/5843 at Kandy as  “Obligors” have made
default in payment due on Bond No. 456 dated 02nd September,
2011 attested by A. M. de Lima, Notary Public in favour of Seylan
Bank PLC (Registered under Ref. PQ 9 according to the Companies
Act, No. 7 of 2007) and there is now due and owing to the Seylan
Bank PLC as at 25th March, 2013 a sum of Rupees Thirty Million
One Hundred and Thirty-two Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy
and cents Twenty-seven (Rs. 30,132,370.27) on the said Bond and
the Board of Directors of Seylan Bank PLC under the powers vested
by the Recovery of Loans by Banks (Special Provisions) Act, No.
4 011990, do hereby resolve that the property morefully described
inthe Schedule hereto and mortgaged to Seylan Bank PLC by the said
Bond No. 456 be sold by Public Auction by Mr. I. W. Jayasuriya,
Licensed Auctioneer forrecovery of the said sum ofRs. 30,132,370.27
together with interest at the rate of Thirty-one Percent (31%) per
annum from 26th March, 2013 to date of sale together with costs of
advertising, any other charges incurred less payments (if any) since
received.”

THE SCHEDULE

All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 1
depicted in Plan No. 2495 dated 23rd May, 2011 made by P. H. T.
de Silva, Licensed Surveyor being Premises bearing Assessment
No. 541 and 543, Sirimavo Bandaranayake Mawatha, situated at
Katukelle within the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy in the
District of Kandy Central Province and which said allotment of land
marked Lot 1 in the said Plan No. 2495 is bounded on the North by
Sirimavo Bandaranayake Mawatha and Lot 1 in Plan No. 405, on the
East by Premises bearing Assessment No. 539, on the South by
Premises bearing Assessment No. 543/2 and on the West by Passage
and Lot 1 inthe Plan No. 405 and containing in extent Sixteen decimal
Nought Two Perches (0A., OR., 16.02P.) or 0.04054 Hectare
together with the everything else standing thereon.

Which above said allotment of land is an amalgamated and re-
surveyed portion of the following lands.

1. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 2
depicted in Plan No. 405 dated 05th March, 1991 made by P. H. T.
De Silva, Licensed Surveyor being premises bearing Assessment
No. 541A, Sirimavo Bandaranayake Mawatha, situated at Katukelle
within the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy in the District of
Kandy Central Province and which said allotment of land marked Lot
2 in the said Plan No. 405 is bounded on the North by Sirimavo
Bandaranayake Mawatha and Lot 1, on the East by Lot 3, on the
South by Premises bearing Assessment No. 543/2 and on the West
by Passage and Lot 1 and containing in extent Eight decimal, Four
Perches (0A., OR., 8.04P.) together with the House, Building and
everything else standing thereon and registered in Volume/Folio A
389/239 at Kandy Land Registry.

2. All that divided and defined allotment of land marked Lot 3
depicted in Plan No. 405 dated 05th March, 1991 made by P. H. T.
De Silva, Licensed Surveyor being premises bearing Assessment
No. 541B, Sirimavo Bandaranyake Mawatha, situated at Katukelle
within the Municipal Council Limits of Kandy in the District of
Kandy Central Province and which said allotment of land marked Lot
3 in the said Plan No. 405 is bounded on the North by Sirimavo
Bandaranayake Mawatha, on the East by Premises bearing
Assessment No. 539 and Municipal Ground, on the South by
Premises bearing Assessment No. 543/2 and on the West by Lot 2
and containing in extent Eight decimal Four Perches (0A., OR.,
8.04P.) together with the House, Building and everything else
standing thereon and registered in Volume/Folio A 389/242 at Kandy
Land Registry.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Ms. K. HaTch,
Assistant General Manager-Legal.

12-541/2
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